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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Results (HKS million) 2007 2006  Chunge
Revenue 493 253 +95%
EBITDA 951 81 +1.074%
Profit uttributuble to equity holders 844 50 +1.588%
Equity uttributuble to equity holders 2,810 2,010 +40%
Return on eyuity 30.0% 2.5% +1,100%

Dividend (HKS million) 2007 2006  Chunhge

Interim dividend puyment 28 16 + 75%

Final dividend puyment 43 31 + 39%

71* 47 +51%

Bonus issue of one new ordinury share for every five ordinury shares for 2007

*

represents a dividend payout of 66% oh the Group’s het operdting cash flow of
HKS 108 million

Per Share Data 2007 2006  Chaunge
Busic eurninys (HK cents) 45.6 4.4 +936%
Diluted eurnings (HK cents) 39.0 3.8 +926%
Busic NAV (HKS) 1.50 1.09 +38%
Diluted NAV (HKS) 1.44 1.09 +32%
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CORPORATE CHART

AT 27TH JULY, 2007

ITC Corporation Limited

(872-HKSE)

27%

PYI Corporation Limited
(498-HKSE)

49%

Hanny Holdinys Limited
(275-HKSE)

36%

Trasy Gold Ex Limited
(8063-GEM/HKSE)

25%

Burcon NufraScience
Corporation
(BU-TSX Venture Exchunhye)
(WKN 157793-FWB)

63% (17%)

Paul Y. Enygineeriny
Group Limited
(577-HKSE)

16% (8%)
Macau Prime Properties

Holdings Limited
(199-HKSE)

17% (9%)
See Corporution Limited

(491-HKSE)

55% (27%) 5% (3%)
Winy On Travel
(Holdinys) Limited
(1189-HKSE)

Chinu Enterprises Limited
(CSHEF.PK-OTC Bulletin Bourd)

57% (28%)

MRI Holdings Limited
(MRI-ASX)

24% (14%) 63% (9%)

(ITC’s effective interest)
(Stock Code - Listinyg Pluce)

3

PSC Corporation Ltd
(PSC-SGX)

Tat Seny Packuying
Group Ltd.
(TAT SENG-SGX)

29% (4%)

Intraco Limited
(INTRACO-SGX)
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CORPORATE CHART

AT 31ST MARCH, 2007

ITC Corporation Limited

(372-HKSE)

27% 63% (17%)
.=
PYI Corporation Limited Paul Y. Engineering
(498-HKSE) Group Limited
(577-HKSE)
67% 15% (10%)
I |
Hanny Holdinys Limited Macau Prime Properties
(275-HKSE) Holdinygs Limited
(199-HKSE)
56% 17% (12%)
.|
Trasy Gold Ex Limited See Corporution Limited
(8063-GEM/HKSE) (491-HKSE)
25% 55% (36%) 20% (9%)
- I | IR 0 III——
Burcon NutraScience Chinu Enterprises Limited Wing On Truvel
Corporution (CSHEF.PK-OTC Bulletin Bourd) (Holdinys) Limited
(BU-TSX Venture Exchuhye) (1189-HKSE)

(WKN 157793-FWB)
57% (38%)

MRI Holdings Limited

(MRI-ASX)
24% (18%) 63% (11%)
— I |
PSC Corporation Ltd Tat Senhy Packuyging
(PSC-SGX) Group Ltd.

(TAT SENG-SGX)

29% (5%)

Infraco Limited
(INTRACO-SGX)
(ITC’s effective interest)
(Stock Code - Listing Place)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The year ended 31st March, 2007 was
an extremely successful year.
Profit attributable to equity holders
increased by 1,588% to HK$844 million.

| am pleused to present to shareholders the unnual report
of ITC Corporation Limited (the "Compuny”) und its
subsidiaries (the “"Group”) for the yeur ended 31st Murch,
2007.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND
POSITIONS

The yeur ended 31st March, 2007 wus unh extremely
successful yeur for the Group. Profit uttributuble to equity
holders reuched d record high of upproximately HK$844
million, representing an increuse of approximutely 1,588%
as compuared to dpproximately HK$50 million for the last
correspondinyg yeuar. Busic eurninys per ordinury share
increused by upproximately 936% to HK45.6 cents (2006:
HK4.4 cents). Revenue increused to upproximutely HK$493
million, representing un increuse of approximately 95%. The
shareholders’ vulue had been substuntidlly increused by
40% to HK$2,810 million und the net usset value per share
had been increused by upproximutely 38% to HK$1.50.

[t is the mission of the Group to become u leudiny
diversified und bulanced investment conglomerate that
excels ut investing in und maximising returhs of compunies
with high growth potentiul. During the yeur, the principul
activities of the Group comprised investment holdiny, the
provision of finuhce, the provision of manuygement services,
property investment und tradinyg, freusury investment,
trading of building muaterials and machinery, holding of
vessels for sund mininyg, und the provision und operation
of un infernet-bused precious Metuls trading platform. The
Group hus stepped uheud towurds its mission by seizing
muarket opportuhities und hus uchieved un outfstundiny
result which proved its expertise in munuginy its strateyic
investments.

During the yeur, the Group hud utilised upproximutely
HKS$426 million to increuse its controlling interest in Hunny
Holdinys Limited ("Hunny”) including the maukinyg of cush
offers for the shures und convertible bonhds of Hunny in
November 2006. The Group is delighted with the success
in increusing its controlling interest in Hunny at u discount

to Hunny’s underlying net usset value und thut the diverse
business coveruge of Hunny enubled the Group to uchieve
u bulunced investment portfolio in u more diversified
manner. The ucyuisitions of conftrolling interest in Hanny
had confributed to the Group u non-cush book guin
arising from the discount on acquisition of upproximautely
HK$560 million which significantly enhanced the
shareholders’ value of the Group.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2007, the Group
continued to hold significunt interests, directly or indirectly,
in U humber of compunies listed in Hony Konhy, Cunuduy,
Singupore, the United Stutes, Australia and Germuny und
other high potentiul unlisted investments pursuunt to its
lonyg-term strateyy of exploring potentiul investments in
an ayygressive, but cautious, maunner und enhuncing u
balunced und diversified investment portfolio.

Strategic Investments

As ut 31st March, 2007, the Group hud the followinyg
significunt strateyic investments:

Listed subsidiaries and strategic investments directly held

Hanny

Hunny is un investment holding compuny. The Hunny gyroup
is principdlly engaged in the frading of securities, property
investment und frading, holdinyg of vessels for sund mininy
und ofher strateygic investments including investments in
(i) subsidiaries whose shures are listed on the Australiun
Securities Exchunge und traded on the OTC Bulletin Board
in the United States; (ii) ussociuted compunies whose
shares ure listed on the The Stock Exchunge of Honhy Konhy
Limited (the “Hohyg Konyg Stock Exchanye”) and the
Singupore Exchunge Limited; und (iii) lony term convertible
notes issued by compunies whose shares are listed on the
Hony Konhy Stock Exchunge. For the yeur ended 31st
March, 2007, Hunny reported a consoliduted profit
attributable to equity holders of upproximately HK$527.1
million and its overdll ufter tax confribution to the Group
waus u profit of upproximately HK$164.5 million.

&
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

Trasy Gold Ex Limited (“Trasy”)

The fruding in the shuares of Trusy hus been successfully
resumed in May 2007 since its suspension in Juhe 2003.
Since the Compuny ucyuired u confrolling interest in Trusy
in March 2005, Trasy has conducted u thorough review of
its business und with the ussistance of the Compuny,
corporute goverhunce dand infernul controls were
strengthened, new Mmurketing initiatives on its internet-
based precious metuls trading platform, hamely TRASY
System, were luunched, und ifs bourd of directors was
reformed. All of these confributed to the significunt
improvements in business which are further evidenced by
the return to g profituble position in its first quarterly results
in 2007. Toyether with u viable business plun, the Hony
Kony Stock Exchange has approved the resumption of
frading of Trasy shares. Following the resumption, the Trasy
group continues to principully enguge in the provision und
operution of the TRASY System to fucilitute the trading of
precious metuls onh existing intfernutionul markets for the
inter-bank fraders, institutional and retdil investors. TRASY
System’s present configuration offers users the dbility to
frade four precious metals — gold, silver, platinum and
pulladium. For the yeur ended 31st March, 2007, Trusy’s
loss aftributable to the Group wus approximately HKS1.1
million.

PYI Corporation Limited (“PYI”)

Bused in Hony Kony, the PYI group focuses on infrustructure
investment in und the operution of bulk cargo ports and
loyistics facilities in the Yaunytze River region in the People’s
Republic of Chihu (the "PRC"). It ulso enygyuges in land
and property development in dassociution with port
facilities. In addition, PYl provides comprehensive
enyineering und constfruction services through Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited (*Puul Y. Engineering”). For the
yeur ended 31st Murch, 2007, PYI reported a consoliduted
profit attributable to eqyuity holders of gpproximately
HKS$345.7 million and its overall ufter tax confribution fo
the Group wus u profit of upproximately HK$95.1 million.

Burcon NutraScience Corporation (“Burcon”)

Burcon is u reseurch und development compuny
developing u portfolio of composition, upplicution, and
process putents auround its plant protein extraction and
purification technoloygy. Burcon’s putented process utilises
inexpensive oilseed meuls for the production of purified
plant proteins that exhibit valuable nutritional, functionul
or nutruceuticual profiles. Burcon, in conjunction with Archer
Daniels Midlund, is currently focusing its efforts on
developinyg the world’s first commerciul canola proteins,
numely Puratein® und Supertein™ (the “Products”). Cunolq,
recoynised for its hutritional gudlities, is the second-largest
oilseed crop in the world ufter soybeuns. Burcon’s goul is
tfo develop the Products fo participate with soy, dairy and

eyy proteins in the expunding multi-billion-dollur protein
ingredient murket, with potential uses in prepured foods,
nufritional supplements, and personul care products. In
June 2007, Burcon wus recoyghised us u TSX Venture 50™
compuny. TSX Venture 50™ is the first ever ranking of the
fop 50 emeryinyg public compunies listed on the TSX
Venture Exchanhge in Canada. For the year ended 31st
March, 2007, Burcon’s loss uftributable to the Group wuas
approximately HK$6.2 million.

Hong Kong listed strategic investments indirectly held

Paul Y. Engineering

Paul Y. Engineering is un infernutiondl engineering services
group, serving Hony Kony, the PRC und the infernutionul
market. It hus three core areus of business: munagement
contfracting, project munuygement and facilities
manugement. With o vast pool of resources, Paul Y.
Engineerinyg hus developed expertise in hundling complex
development und construction projects.

Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited (“MPP”)

The MPP ygroup is principually enguged in property
development und investment in Macau, the PRC und Hony
Kony. The MPP group is dlso engayed inh securities
investment; aund operautions of yolf resort and hotel.

See Corporation Limited (“See Corp”)

The See Corp yroup is principully engaged in the
entertuinment und mMediu business, which includes film aund
television programme productions; event productions;
artiste und model munuygement; music productions; and
munufucturing und sule of multimediu electronic products,
foys und gumes products. It dlso owhs sighificant interest
in TVB Puy Vision Holdings Limited, which operutes u pay-
television business in Hony Kony.

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (“Wing On Travel”)

The Wing On Travel group is principully enguyed in the
business of providing puckuyge ftours, fravel und reluted
services, und hotel und leisure business including a hotel
chuin with the "Rosedule” brund in Hony Konhy und the
PRC.

Overseas listed strategic investments indirectly held

PSC Corporation Ltd (“PSC”)

PSC focuses on three core business uctivities in consumer
business, hedlthcure and puckaging which involves in
munufacturing of food und other products, distribution of
food und other fust moving consumer goods, loyistics, retuil
franchising, media educution unhd entertuinment,
heulthcure consultuncy und hospitul munugement
services, und strateyic investments in high growth sectors

6
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

including puckuying through Tut Seny Puckuyiny Group
Ltd. ("Tat Seny Puckuying”).

China Enterprises Limited (“China Enterprises”)

The Chinu Enterprises group is enguyged in the business of
property investment und development in the PRC und haus
substuntial interests in certuin investment holding
compunies, the subsidiaries of which dare principually
enguyed in the business of manufacturing and marketing
of tires in the PRC und other countries abroad und the
business of providinyg puckuge fours, fravel und reluted
services, und hotel und leisure business.

MRI Holdings Limited (“MRI”)

MRI is un investment compuny, which hus a muajor
investment in one of the leuding heulth and fithess chains
in Australiau, The MRI ygroup continues to identify
appropriate, strateyic investment opportunities that
muximise returns to shareholders, within the clear maundate
determined by shareholders.

Intraco Limited (“Intraco”)

The Intraco group hus developed its business portfolio
under five core sectors, which dare uygri-business und foods,
ehergy und environment, industrial mauteridls, buildiny
materidls und security solutions, und semiconductors.

Tat Seng Packaging

Tut Seny Puckuying is ohe of Sinyupore’s leudiny
munufacturers of corruguted puper puckayging product
with operutions in Singupore und Suzhou und Hefei, the
PRC. Tut Sehy Puckayging desighs, manufactures and sells
corruguted puper puckuying products for the pucking of
diverse runyge of products uccording to customers’
specificutions. Its key products include corruyuted puper
bourds, corruguted puper curtons, die-cut boxes, ussembly
curtons, heavy duty corruguted puper products und other
puckaying reluted products.

The Group’s interests in listed subsidiaries and struteyic investments are summuarised below:

Listed subsidiaries and strategic investiments directly held

Name of

investee company Place of listing

Hanny Hony Kony Stock Exchunhye
Trasy The Growth Enterprise Market of
Hony Kony Stock Exchunge
PYI Hony Kony Stock Exchunge
Burcon TSX Venture Exchunyge und

Frankfurt Stock Exchunye
Hong Kong listed strategic investments indirectly held

Name of
investee company Place of listing

Paul Y. Engineeriny Hony Kony Stock Exchunye

MPP Honyg Kony Stock Exchunge
Hony Kony Stock Exchunhye

See Corp

Winyg On Travel Hony Kony Stock Exchunye

Shareholding percentage
As at As at the date
Stock code 31/3/2007 of this report
275 67.2% 49.9%
8063 56.5% 36.9%
498 27.0% 27.0%
BU 25.5% 25.3%

WKN 157793
Effective interest

As at As at the date
Stock code 31/3/2007 of this report
577 17.2% 17.2%
(Note a) (Note u)
199 10.4% 8.0%
(Note b) (Note b)
491 12.1% 9.0%
(Note b) (Note b)
1189 9.3% 3.1%
(Note c) (Note c)

=
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

Overseas listed strategic investments indirectly held

Name of

investee company Place of listing

PSC Singupore Exchunye Limited

Chinu Enterprises OTC Bulletin Bourd, U.S.A.
MRI Austruliun Securities Exchunyge
Tut Seny Puckuying

Singupore Exchunye Limited

Infraco Singupore Exchunye Limited

Notes:

interest wus/is held through its direct interest in Hanny.

(u) The Group’s interest wus/is held through its direct interest in PYI.

(b) The Group’s intferest wus/is held through its direct interests in Hanny.

(c) Other thun the Group’s direct interest of upproximutely 1.9% us at 31st March, 2007 (1.0% us ut the dute of this report), the
Group’s interest wus/is held through its direct and/or indirect interest in Hunny and/or Chinu Enterprises.

(d) Ofther thun the Group’s direct interest of upproximutely 2.0% us ut 31st March, 2007 und the dute of this report, the Group’s

(e) The Group’s interest wus/is held through its indirect intferest in PSC.

Effective interest

As at As at the date

Stock code 31/3/2007 of this report
PSC 18.3% 14.2%
(Note d) (Note d)

CSHEF 36.7% 27.6%
(Note b) (Note b)

MRI 38.1% 28.6%
(Note b) (Note b)

TAT SENG 11.7% 9.1%
(Note e) (Note e)

INTRACO 5.5% 4.2%
(Note e) (Note e)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group hus udopted u prudent fundiny and freusury
policy with regurd to its overdll business operations. Cush,
bunhk bulunces und deposits us ut 31st March, 2007
umounted to upproximutely HK$282 million. As ut 31st
March, 2007, the Group hud borrowinygs of upproximately
HK$730 million of which upproximutely HK$589 million is
repuydble within one year or on demund. The redeemuble
convertible preference shures with un uyygreyute
redemption vulue of upproximutely HK$282 million will be
redeemed onh 3rd November, 2007 (or the hext followiny
business day if it is hot u business duy) unless they ure
previously converted, redeemed or purchused und
cuncelled.

As at 31st March, 2007, all the Group’s borrowings, except
the redeemuble convertible preference shures, convertible
notes puyuble und other louns of HK$510 million, ure ut
flouting interest rutes und the Group’s current ratio wus
2.2.

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

As at 31st March, 2007, upproximutely 16.0% of the cush,
bank bulunces und deposits were in other currencies und
ohly upproximutely 1.0% und 1.3% of the Group’s totul
borrowinys of upproximutely HKS$1,573 million were
denominated in Cunudiun dollurs und Singuporeun dollars,
respectively. The borrowinys in foreigh currencies ure
directly tied in with the Group’s business.

-
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s yeuring rutio, which wus culculuted using the
Group’s het borrowinys of upproximately HK$1,291 million
und the eqyuity uttributuble to eqyuity holders of
approximately HK$2,810 million, was 45.9% us at 31st March,
2007, us compured to 7.5% us ut 31st March, 2006. If the
net borrowinygs of Hunny group were excluded, the Group’s
geuriny rutio would be 9.8%.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As ut 31st Murch, 2007, certain of the Group’s properties,
margin accounts receivables, held for frading investments
and derivative finuncial instruments with an aggreguate
currying vulue of upproximutely HKS$S478.6 million were
pledged to bunks und financial institutions to secure
genherul facilities grunted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group had contingent liubilities
in respect of yuuruntees given to bunks und finuncial
institutions on yeneral facilities grunted to un ussociute
and u third purty of upproximately HK$56 million und
HK$23.3 million, respectively, und finunciul support given
to the ussociute of upproximutely HK$8.8 million.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As ut 31st March, 2007, the Group employed a totul of 134
employees. It is the Group’s remunerution policy thut the
employees’ remuneration is bused oh the employees’ skill,
knowledye und involvement in the Compuny’s uffuirs und
is determined by reference to the Compuny’s
performunce, us well us remunerution benchmurk in the
industry and the prevuiling market conditions. The ultimute
objective of the remunerution policy is to ensure thut the
Group is uble to uttruct, retuin and motivate a high-culibre
teum which is essentiul to the success of the Compuny.
The Group ulso offers benefits fo employees includiny
discretionary bonus, truining, provident funds und medicul
coveruye. Shure option schemes ure estublished for the
eliyible employees but no shure option wus yranted during
the yeur und there wus no outstunding share options
grunted by the Compuny us ut 31st Murch, 2007.

MAJOR EVENTS

The major events of the Group during the year ended 31st
March, 2007 are summarised below:

Hanny

In August 2006, Fumex Investment Limited (“Fumex”), un
indirect wholly-ownhed subsidiury of the Compuny,
conditionully ugreed to ucquire 22,812,359 shures of Hunny
ut u price of HK$3.8 per share umounted to upproximutely
HK$86.7 million. The acquisition was completed in
November 2006. Upon completion, Fumex wus reyuired to
muke u conditionul mundutory cush offer to aucquire dll
the issued shares of Hanny at HK$3.8 per share and to
muke u compuruble offer to the holders of the existing
convertible bonds of Hunny under the Tukeovers Code
(the "Offers”). The Offers were closed on 13th December,
2006.

In January 2007, Hanny agreed to subscribe for a HK$124.5
million convertible bond of Chinu Stur Entertuinment
Limited at a consideration of dpproximately HK$118.3
million. The subscription was completed in May 2007.

In March 2007, Hunny entered into the underwritiny
ugreement with See Corp in relation to the uhderwriting
und certuin other arrangements in respect of the rights
issue to be implemented by See Corp. Pursuunt to the
underwriting ugreement, Hunny agreed to fully underwrite
up to 367,047,620 rights shares ut u price of HK$0.2 per
rights share other than the rights shares for which Mr. Yu
Kum Kee, Luwrence, Hanny and Dr. Chan Kwok Keuhy,
Churles ("Dr. Chun”) undertook to subscribe. In addition,
un irrevocuble undertuking wus given by Hunny in favour
of See Corp that, umony other things, it would tuke up its
entitlement in full under the rights issue. The rights issue
wus completed in May 2007.

PYI

In March 2007, the Compuny unnounced thut the directors
of the Compuny (the “Directors”) infended fo seek the
upprovul of the holders of ordinury shares of the Compuny
(the “Ordinary Shareholders”) for the possible disposal of
shares of PYl in one or more transactions within fwelve
months from the dute of upproval by the Ordinary
Shureholders provided thut the percentuye ratios
upplicuble to ull such disposuls tuken in ugyreyute would
not exceed the upper limit of the mujor trunsuction
percentuge ratios under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchunge of Honyg Kony Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The minimum disposul price shall be
eqyudl to or exceed HKS3 per shure (subject to udjustment
in the event of u shure consolidution or shure subdivision
by PYI). The upproval from the Ordinary Shareholders wus
obtuined in April 2007.

=
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The major events of the Group subsequent to the year
ended 31st March, 2007 are summarised below:

The Company

In June 2007, u plucing und subscription ugreement wus
entered intfo between the Compuny, Dr. Chun und u
plucing augent, pursuunt to which the plucing ugent
ugreed to place 300,000,000 existing ordinury shares of
the Compuny ut the price of HK$0.74 per shure on behulf
of Dr. Chun und Dr. Chun uygreed to subscribe for
300,000,000 new ordinaury shares of the Compuny ut the
price of HK$0.74 per share. The placing und subscription
were completed in Juhe 2007.

Hanny

In April 2007, u plucing und subscription ugreement wus
entered intfo between the Compuny, Hunny und u placing
uyent, pursuunt to which the placing uygyent uyreed to
place 43,500,000 existing shures of Hunny ut the price of
HK$3.40 per share on behualf of the Compuny and the
Compuny ugreed to subscribe for 43,500,000 hew shures
of Hanny at the price of HK$3.40 per share. The estimated
loss for the plucing und subscription of shures in Hanny us
disclosed in the circular of the Compuny dated 2nd May,
2007 wus upproximutely HK$145 million.

In April 2007, Hunny conditionully ugreed to subscribe for
125,000,000 new shures of Wonson Internationul Holdings
Limited ("Wohson”) ut the price of HKS$0.16 per shure und
HK$40 million redeemable convertible notes of Wonson at
fuce vulue. The subscriptions were completed in May 2007.

In May 2007, the Group disposed of 21,000,000 shures of
Hanny at HK$5 per share to independent third parties. The
estimated loss for the disposal of shares of Hanny us
disclosed in the circular of the Compuny dated 28th Muay,
2007 wus upproximately HK$71 million. Upon the conversion
of convertible bonds by independent third parties, Hunny
ceused to be u subsidiury of the Compuny.

The Group’s shureholdiny interest in Hanny is approximately
49.99% us ut the dute of this report.

Trasy

In May 2007, the Hony Konyg Stock Exchunye approved
the resumption of fradiny in the shares of Trasy followiny
the submission of u resumption proposul with upduted
informution about Trasy in ferms of its operation, financial
position und performunce, corporute governunce, und the
audeyuucy und effectiveness of its infernal control system.

In June 2007, Trasy ceused to be d subsidiary of the
Compuhy upon the exercise of shure options by an
independent third party. Furthermore, u placing aund
subscription ugreement wus entered into between the
Compuny, Trusy und u plucing uygent, pursuunt to which
the plucing ugent agreed to pluce 550,000,000 existing
shares of Trusy ut the price of HK$0.20 per shure on behulf
of the Compuny und the Compuny uyreed to subscribe
for 550,000,000 hew shures of Trusy ut the price of HK$0.20
per share. The estimuted guin for the placing und
subscription of shares in Trusy us disclosed in the circular
of the Compuny duted 5th July, 2007 wus upproximutely
HK$38 million.

In June 2007, the Compuny hus conditionully ugreed to
subscribe for up tfo 340,000,000 new shares of Trusy ut
HK$0.205 per shure while Trusy has conditionully ugreed
to place up to 392,000,000 hew shares of Trasy at HK$0.205
per share through a placing agent. The humber of shares
of Trusy beiny subscribed and held by the Compuny und
its concert purties will be of the minimum of 38.58% but
not exceediny 40% of the issued share capital of Trasy as
enlurged by the plucement and subscription. In addition,
the Compuny hus condifionally agreed to subscribe for
HK$50 million convertible notes of Trusy und muy elect to
subscribe for un udditionul umount up to HKS$50 million
(representing the principul umount out of HK$100 million
convertible notes of Trusy which have nhot been successfully
placed by fthe placing agyent who has conditionally
agreed to place up tfo HK$100 million convertible hotes of
Trasy).

The Group’s shureholding interest in Trusy is upproximately
36.87% us ut the dute of this report.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

As a result of the issue of hew ordinury shares of the
Compuny under scrip dividend scheme in February 2007
und the dllotment of hew ordinury shares pursuunt to the
placing and subscription in June 2007, the fotal humber
of issued ordinury shures und issued redeemuble
convertible preference shures of the Compuny us ut the
dute of this report ure 2,172,982,368 und 266,062,000,
respectively of HK$0.10 euch.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND BONUS ISSUE OF ORDINARY
SHARES

The bourd of Directors (the “"Bourd”) hus resolved fo
recommend the puyment of u final dividend of HK2.0 cents
per ordinary share for the year ended 31st Murch, 2007
(2006: HK1.7 cents) to Ordinury Shureholders whose names
appedur on the reyister of Ordinury Shareholders us ut the
close of business on 15th October, 2007. The proposed final
dividend is expected to be puid to Ordinury Shareholders
by post oh or uround 5th November, 2007 followiny
approval ut the annhuul generul meeting. The Boaurd hus
dlso proposed that the finul dividend should be sutisfied
by cush, with un option to elect scrip dividend of ordinary
shares, in respect of purt or dll of such dividend. The murket
vulue of the ordihury shares to be issued under scrip
dividend proposul will be fixed by reference to the uverage
of the closing prices of the ordihary shares of the Compuny
for the three consecutive frading days endiny 15th
October, 2007 less u discount of five per cent. of such
averuye price or the par vualue of ordihury shuares,
whichever is the higher. The proposed scrip dividend is
conditional upon the Hony Konyg Stock Exchunge grunting
listing of, und permission to deul in, the hew ordihury shares
to be issued und the pussing at the forthcominy annuul
geherul meetiny of the Compuny of un ordinary resolution
to upprove the final dividend. A circular with full details of
the scrip dividend proposul und a form of election will be
sent to Ordinury Shareholders.

The Bourd hus ulso recommended a bonus issue of hew
ordinary shares (the “"Bonus Shures”) to Ordinary
Shareholders on the busis of ohe hew ordinary shure for
every five ordinary shares held by them whose nhuames
appeur on the reyister of Ordinury Shareholders us ut the
close of the business on 15th October, 2007 (the “Proposed
Bonus Issue”). The Bonus Shares will be issued and credited
as fully paid uand will rank pari pussu with the then issued
ordinary shares in dll respects with effect from the dute of
issue, except that they ure nhot entitled to the Proposed
Bonus Issue und the proposed finul dividend for the yeuar
ended 31st Murch, 2007 us mentioned above.

11

Tuking intfo uccount the proposed finul dividend of HK2.0
cents per ordinury shure und the interim dividend of HK1.5
cents per ordinury share, the ftotul dividend puyment is
approximately HKS71.4 million (2006: HK$47.4 million) bused
on the issued ordinary share cupital us ut the date of this
report. The total dividend payment represents u dividend
payout of upproximately 66% on the Group’s het operating
cush flow of approximately HK$107.9 million for the year,
Despite that a mujority portion of the current yeur’s profit
wds hoh-cush in hature (such us discount on ucyuisition
and profit contribution from dssociutes) und that
substuntiaul umount of cush wus beinyg ufilised for the
acyuisition of Hunny, the Board believes that the Proposed
Bonus Issue, in uddition to the finul dividend, is a return to
the lony-term support of the Ordinury Shureholders. The
Proposed Bonhus lIssue will also dallow the Ordinary
Shareholders to participate in the business growth of the
Group by way of capitdalisution of a portion of the share
premium account of the Compuny.

The Proposed Bonus Issue is conditional upon: (i) the
pussing of the relevant ordinary resolufion fo approve the
Proposed Bonus Issue by the Ordinary Shareholders at the
speciul generul meeting of the Compuny; und (ii) the
Listihng Committee of the Hohy Kony Stock Exchunye
grunting or uygreeiny to yrunt the listing of und permission
fo dedl in the Bonus Shares to be issued pursuunt to the
Proposed Bonus Issue.

A circular with further detuils of the Proposed Bonus Issue
will be sent to the shareholders of the Compuny.

DIVIDEND ON PREFERENCE SHARES

The Bourd hus resolved to puy u dividend of HK4.0 cents
per redeemuble convertible preference share of the
Compuny of HKS0.1 euch in respect of the twelve month
period ending on but excluding 3rd November, 2007 to
holders of redeemuble convertible preference shures
whose numes uppeur on the reyister of holders of
redeemuble convertible preference shures of the
Compuhny us ut the close of business on 15th October,
2007. The dividend on redeemuble convertible preference
shares is expected to be puid to holders of redeemuble
convertible preference shares by post on or around 5th
November, 2007.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

CLOSE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS

The reyister of Ordinury Shureholders will be closed from
11th October, 2007 to 15th October, 2007, both duys
inclusive, during which period no ordinury share trunsfer
shull be effected. In order to yuulify for the proposed final
dividend und the Proposed Bonus Issue, all transfers of
ordinury shares uccompunied by the relevant share
certificutes must be lodged with the Compuny’s branch
shure reyistrar in Hony Kony, Secreturies Limited ut 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Roud East, Wanchuai, Hony
Kony for reyistration by no later thun 4:00 p.m. on 10th
October, 2007.

The regygister of holders of redeemuble convertible
preference shares of the Compuny will be closed from
11th October, 2007 to 15th October, 2007, both dutes
inclusive, during which period no redeemuble convertible
preference share transfer shull be effected. In order to
qualify for the dividend oh redeemuble convertible
preference shures, dll fransfers of redeemuble convertible
preference shares auccompanied by the relevant share
certificutes must be lodged with the Compuny’s branch
share reyistrar in Hong Kony, Secretaries Limited, at the
uforesuid address for reyistration by no later than
4:00 p.m on 10th October, 2007.

OUTLOOK

The Hohy Konyg economy is boominyg uand has continuously
enhjoyed ubove-tfrend growth in the pust three yeurs, with
the Gross Domestic Product continued to yrow solidly and
the seusonully udjusted unemployment rate has fallen to
u hine-yeur low. The PRC economy hus remuined buoyunt
und with the closer integration following the strengthening
of Pun-Peurl River Deltu cooperution and further
liberalisution measures uhder the Closer Economic
Parthership Arrahgement framework, our country continues
to provide strony support to Honyg Kony. Lookiny uheud,
the Group is cautiously optimistic about its investment and
business operaution.

To focus our mission of beiny u leadiny diversified and
bulunced investment conyglomeraute, the Group will
contfinue to cupture investment opportunities which cun
provide sustainable growth and refurns with the ultimate
goul to muximise its shareholders’ value. In Muy 2007, the
resumption of trading in Trasy shares hus proved our ubility
in unlocking the potentiul of strategic investments. We will
dlso continue to provide full support to our investee
compunies to strive for betfter performunce und increuse
their value. This is demonstruted by u series of events that
has taken pluce subseyuent to the 2007 finunciul yeur
end ds mentioned in the section heuded “Mujor
Subseyuent Events”. Furthermore, the issue of 300,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company in June 2007 provided
the Compuny with additionul resources to fund its
acquisitions and investments when dppropriate
opportunities urise. Building on the existinyg ussets buse,
burring unforeseen circumstaunces, the Group is confident
in meeting its goul und overcominy the future chullenges
by seizing the opportunities uheud.

APPRECIATION

On behulf of the Bourd, | would like to tuke this opportunity
to thank the shureholders for their confinuous support fo
the Compuny und extend my uppreciution to ull
munugement und stuff members for their contribution und
dedicution throughout the yeur.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chuirmaun

Honhy Kony, 27th July, 2007
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

DIRECTORS

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, uged 52, is the Chairman of the Compuny. Dr. Chun holds un honorary deyree of Doctor of
Laws and u buchelor’s degree in civil enygineering und hus over 27 yeudrs’ internutionul corporute munugement
experience in the construction und property sectors us well us in strategic investments. He joined the Group in Februury
1997 und is responsible for its strateygic plunning. Dr. Chan is the chairman of Hanny Holdings Limited and u non-
executive director of PYl Corporation Limited. Dr. Chan is the sole director of Chinaview Infernational Limited and
Guluxywuy Investments Limited which ure substuntiaul shareholders of the Compuny us disclosed in the section heuded
“Interests und short positions of substantiul shareholders/other persons recorded in the reyister kept under section 336
of the SFO” in the directors’ report. Dr. Chun is the elder brother of Mr. Chun Kwok Chuen, Augustine, un executive
director of the Compuny.

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, uged 52, is the Deputy Chairmun and Munuying Director of the Compuny, u member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Compuny and a director of various subsididries of the Group. Ms. Chau hus over 27
yedars' experience in international corporate munugement and finance. She holds u buchelor’s degree und u muster’s
degree in commerce und is u fellow member of the Hong Kony Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA
Austruliu und u member of the Certified Generul Accountunts’ Associution of Cunudu. She joined the Group in
February 1997 and is responsible for its operations und business development. Ms. Chuu is u director of Burcon
NutraScience Corporution.

Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, uged 48, joined the Compuny us un executive director in November 1997 und is u
director of vurious subsidiuries of the Group. Mr. Chun holds u diplomu in arts und hus over 24 yeurs’ experience in
trading business in the PRC. Mr. Chun is the younger brother of Dr. Chan Kwok Keuny, Churles, the Chuirman of the
Compuny.

Chan Fut Yan, uged 53, joined the Compuny us un executive director in December 1997 und is u director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan hus over 34 yeurs’ experience in the locul construction field specialising in site
supervision, plunning of works und progress monitoring. He is the munuying director of Mucuu Prime Properties Holdings
Limited.

Cheung Hon Kit, uged 53, joined the Compuny us un independent hon-executive director in December 1999 und wus
appointed as un executive director in September 2001. He is ulso a director of u subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Cheuny
gruduuted from the University of London with u buchelor of arts degree. He hus over 29 yeurs’ experience in reul
estute development, property investment und corporute finunce. He hus worked in key executive position in various
leauding property development compunies in Hony Konyg. He is the chuirmun of Mucuu Prime Properties Holdinys
Limited, the munugyiny director of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited und un independent non-executive director of u
number of publicly listed companies in Honhy Konhy.

Chuck, Winston Calptor, uged 51, joined the Compuny us un independent hon-executive director in November 2001.
He is ulso the Chuirmun of the Remuneration Committee und u member of the Audit Committee of the Compuny.
Mr. Chuck yraduuted from the University of Western Onturio, Cunudu with a buchelor of arts degree. He is u pructising
solicitor in Hony Konyg and hus over 25 years’ experience in the leydl fields. He is also an independent hon-executive
director of u publicly listed compuny in Honhy Kongy.

Lee Kit Wah, uged 51, joined the Compuny us un independent non-executive director in July 2004. He is ulso the
Chduirman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Commifttee of the Compuny. Mr. Lee graduated
from University of Toronto with u bachelor’s degree in commerce. He is u fellow member of the Honyg Kony Institute of
Certified Public Accountunts, the Associution of Churtered Certified Accountunts und the Tuxation Institute of Hony
Kony. He hus been practising us u certified public accountunt in Hony Kony since 1988 und is the munuyinyg director
of un uccounting firm. Mr. Lee is dlso un independent hon-executive director of a publicly listed compuny in Hony
Kony.

™ 13

g2

ANNUAL REPORT 2007



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # @© # % ARSI

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT (continued)

Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, JrP, uged 62, joined the Compuny us un independent non-executive director in Juhe 2006
und is ulso u member of the Audit Committee of the Compuny. Mr. Shek gruduuted from the University of Sydney,
Australia with a Bachelor of Arts. Mr. Shek is a member of the Leyislutive Council for the Hony Konhy Speciul Administrative
Reyion representing redl estate and construction functional constituency since 2000. Currently, Mr. Shek is a member of
the Council of The Hony Konyg University of Science & Technologyy und member of the Court of The University of Hony
Kony. He is ulso u member of the Munhuying Bourd of Kowloon-Cunton Ruilway Corporation und a director of The Hony
Kony Mortguye Corporution Limited. Mr. Shek wus uppointed us u Justice of the Peduce in 1995. Mr. Shek is ulso un
independent non-executive director of u humber of publicly listed compunies in Hohy Konhy.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Law Hon Wa, William, uged 42, is the Compuny Secretury und the Chief Accountunt of the Compuny und is ulso u
director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Law has over 18 yeurs’ experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management. He holds a bachelor's deyree in business administration and a master's deyree in applied
finunce. He is u member of the Hony Kony Institute of Certified Public Accountunts, u fellow member of the Associution
of Churtered Certified Accountants und dlso a certified public uccountant in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2000
und is responsible for its finunce, uccounting, und compuny secretariul functions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Compuny is committed to muinfuining u high stundurd of corporute governunce pructices und procedures. The
Compuny believes that good corporate governance practices are essential for effective munagement to enhancing
shuareholders’ vulue. The corporute yovernunce principles of the Compuny emphusise u guulity Bourd, sound internal
confrols, und transpdrency und accountubility tfo dll shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Compuny hus, throughout the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2007, complied with the code provisions of the Code on
Corporute Governance Practices (the "Code”) contuined in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchunge of Hony Kony Limited (the "Hony Kony Stock Exchunge”) except that the
Chuirmun of the Bourd could hot uttend the unnuul generul meeting of the Compuny held on 13th September, 2006
due fo u business trip abroad. Despite of thut, representatives of the Board including executive directors und independent
non-executive directors of the Compuny were present ut the meeting to unswer yuestions on the Group'’s businesses.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Compuny hus udopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the "Model Code”) us its own code of conduct regurding securities fransuctions by the directors
of the Compuny (the “Directors”). All Directors have confirmed, following specific enqyuiry by the Compuny, that they
have complied with the required stundurd set out in the Model Code during the yeaur ended 31st March, 2007.

The Compuhny hus ulso udopted u code of conduct yoverniny securities trunsactions by employees who muy possess
or huve uccess to unpublished price sensitive information of the Compuny or its securities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The members of the Bourd are individuully und collectively responsible for the leudership und control of, und for
promoting the success of, the Compuny by directing und supervising the Compuny’s uffair, As ut the dute of this report,
the Bourd comprises eight Directors, including the Chairmun, the Deputy Chuirmun and Munuging Director, three other
executive Directors, und three independent hon-executive Directors. The Bourd hus u bulunced composition of executive
und independent hon-executive Directors so that strony independent elements ure included in the Bourd, enubling
the Bourd to exercise judgment independently und muke decision objectively in the interests of the Compauny und its
shareholders us u whole. Biographicul detuils of the Directors, showing u good bulunce of professionul expertise und
diverse runye of experience umony them, ure set out on puyes 13 und 14 of the unnuul report. The Bourd members
have no finunciul, business, fumily or other muaterial/relevunt relutionship with euch other, except thut
Dr. Chan Kwok Keuny, Churles is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine.

The Bourd hus delegyuted the Executive Bourd with authority und responsibility for hundling the munugement functions
and operutions of the duy-to-duy business of the Compuny, while reserving certuin key mutters for the upproval by the
Bourd. The types of decisions to be tuken by the Bourd include unnuul und interim period finunciul reporting und
conftrol, equity funhd ruising, decluration of interim dividend und muking recommendution of finul dividend or other
distributions, notifiuble transuctions under Chapters 14 und 14A of the Listing Rules und muking recommendution for
cupital reorgunisution or scheme of urrungement of the Compuny.

Four regulur Bourd meetinys were held with at leust fourteen duys’ notices yiven to ull Directors und udditionul Bourd
meetings were held us und when necessury. Directors are provided with relevant informution to mauke informed decisions.
The Bourd und euch Director huve sepurute und independent uccess to the Compuny’s sehior munugement. A
Director who considers u need for independent professionul udvice in order to perform his/her duties us u Director muy
cohvehe, or reyuest the secretary of the Compuny to convene, u meetiny of the Bourd to upprove the seeking of
independent legul or other professionul advice.

15

ANNUAL REPORT 2007



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # @© # % ARSI

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The uttendunce of euch individuul member of the Bourd, the Audit Committee und the Remuneration Committee at
the respective meetinygs during the financial yeuar is set out in the followiny tuble:

Meetings Attended/
Eligible to attend

Audit Remuneration

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
Executive Directors
Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles (Chairmanh) 10/12
Chuu Mei Wah, Rosunnu 12/12 4/4

(Deputy Chuirman and Manhayging Director)
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine 6/12

(formerly knowh us Chanh Kwok Hunhg)
Chan Fut Yan 10/12
Cheuny Hon Kit 10/12
Independent hon-executive Directors
Chuck, Winston Cualptor 11/12 1/2 4/4
Lee Kit Wuh 12/12 2/2 4/4
Shek Lai Him, Abrahum (appointed on 26th June, 2006) 10/11 2/2
Wonhyg Kum Cheony, Stanley (refired onh 13th September, 2006) 5/5 1/1

Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of the Chuirmun und Munuyinyg Director ure segreyuted und ure held by different individuals. The Chairmun is
responsible for the Group’s strateyic planning und the maunugement of the operations of the Bourd, while the Munuging
Director tukes the leud in the Group’s operutions und business development. There is u clear division of responsibilities
between the Chuirmun und Mahayiny Director of the Compuny which provides u bulance of power und authority.

Independent non-executive Directors

The independent hon-executive Directors ure uppointed for u specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until
the conclusion of the third annudl generdl meeting from the dute of their last re-election and in accordunce with the
Compuny’s Bye-luws. One of the independent honh-executive Directors hus uppropriate professionul yuulificutions or
uccounting or reluted finunciul munuyement expertise us reqyuired under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Compuny
hus received the annhuul confirmution of independence from euch of the independent non-executive Directors us
reyuired under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Compuny considers dll independent hon-executive Directors to be
independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Nomination, appointment and re-election of directors

The Bourd us u whole is responsible for the uppointment of hew Directors und Directors” hominution for re-election by
holders of ordinury shares of the Compuny (the “Ordinary Shareholders”) ut the yenerul meeting. Under the Compuny’s
Bye-laws, the Directors shull have the power to uppoint uny person us u Director at any time either to fill u cusuul
vucuncy onh the Bourd or us un addition to the existing Bourd who is subject to retirement und re-election ut the first
generul meeting or first unnudl yenerul meeting respectively ufter his/her appointment. All Directors ure subject to
retirement und re-election by the Ordinury Shureholders on u rotution busis ut leust once every three yeurs. Potentiul
new Directors dre identified und submitted to the Bourd for upprovul. The hominution of Directors should be tuken into
considerution of the cundidute’s yuulificution, ubility und potentiul contribution o the Compuny. A cundidute to be
uppointed us independent hon-executive Director must ulso sutisfy the independence criteriu set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. No Bourd meeting wus convenhed during the year under review for the appointment of hew Director
but Bourd resolution wus pussed by circulation in relation to the uppointment of Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham as un
independent non-executive Director in June 2006.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Bourd hus set up u Remunerution Committee with a mujority of the members beiny independent honh-executive
Directors. The existing Remuneration Committee comprises two independent honh-executive Directors, hamely, Mr.
Chuck, Winston Cualptor (Chuirman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lee Kit Wah, and the Deputy Chuirman
and Manuyiny Director, Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna.,

The principul responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendutions to the Bourd on the
Compuny’s policy und structure for dall remuneration of Directors und senior munagement and on the estublishment of
a formal und frunspurent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration und reviewing und determining the
remunerution puckuges of the executive Directors und sehior munugement. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, which follow closely the requirements of the code provisions of the Code, have been udopted by the
Bourd, ure posted on the Compuny’s website. The Remunerution Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharye its duties.

During the yeur, the Remunerution Committee held four meetinys. In these meetings, the Remuneration Committee had
principully performed the followings: muking recommenduaution onh directors’ fees to the Board for the approval by the
Ordinary Shureholders at the unnudl genheral meeting, upproving the directors’ fees of executive Directors und muking
recommendution for the upprovul by the Bourd on independent non-executive Directors’ fees, reviewing und dapproving
the discretionary bonus of the Chuirman, the Deputy Chuirman and Mahaging Director, an executive Director und
sehior munaygement of the Compuny und muking recommenddution on the Director’s fee of Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham,
who wus uppointed us un independent non-executive Director during the yeur, to the Bourd for approvual.

With the recommendution of the Remuneration Committee, the Bourd set the remuneration policy of directors und
senior munagement of the Compuny. The Remunerution Committee shall consult the Chuirman und/or the Munugying
Director of the Compuny ubout its proposdls reluting to remuneration puckages of the directors und senior munagement
of the Compuny. The emoluments of the directors und senior munugement of the Compuny ure bused on the skills,
knowledyge und involvement in the Compuny’s affuirs of euch Director or senior maunaygement und are determined by
reference to the Compuny’s performance, us well us remuneration benchmark in the industry und the prevdiling
muarket conditions. The ultimate objective of the remuneration is fo ensure that the Compuany is uble to attract, retain
and motivate a high-culibre tfeam which is essentiual fo the success of the Compuny.

The detuils of the remuneration of Directors ure set out on hote 8 to the consoliduted financiul statements. No Director
is involved in deciding his/her own remunerution.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As ut the dute of this report, the Audit Committee of the Compuny consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, numely Mr. Lee Kit Wuh (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Chuck, Winston Culptor and Mr. Shek Lui
Him, Abrahum. The Audit Committee is chuired by Mr. Lee Kit Wuh, who is u uulified uccountunt with extensive
experience in finunciul reporting und conftrols.

The principul duties of the Audit Committee include reviewinyg the Compuny’s finuncial reporting system and internal
control procedures, reviewing the Group’s finunciul informution und reviewing the relationship with the external auditors
of the Compuny. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which follow closely the requirements of code provisions
of the Code, have been adopted by the Bourd und posted on the Compuny’s website. The Audit Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to dischurge its dufties.

During the year under review, the Audit Commifttee reviewed und mude recommehndution for the Board’s upproval of
the druft audited financiul stutements of the Group for the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2006 und the druft unaudited
interim finunciul stutements of the Group for the six months ended 30th September, 2006, discussed the uccounting
policies und pructices which muy dffect the Group with the munugement und the Compuny’s uuditors, mude
recommendution on the re-uppointment of externul auditors for the upprovul of the Ordinary Shureholders in the
unhuul geherul meeting of the Compuny, reviewed the fees charged by the externul auditors und reviewed the
internul control system of the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmutsu ("Deloitte”), the Group’s principal auditor, wus re-appointed by the Ordinary
Shareholders ut the annhuul yeneral meeting of the Compuany held on 13th September, 2006 us the Compuny’s externdl
auditor until the hext annuul generul meeting. For the year ended 31st March, 2007, the totul fee puid/puyuble in
respect of statutory uudit and non-audit services provided by Deloitte is set out in the followiny tuble:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

for the year ended 31st March

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS 000

Audit service 6,600 870
Non-audit services

Tuxution 20 20

Ad hoc projects 1,550 200

Review of interim results 300 250

Review of unnuul results ahnouncement 30 30

Total fee paid/payable for the year 8,500 1,370

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors ure responsible for the prepuration of the finunciul statements for each financiul period which give a frue
and fuir view of the state of uffairs of the Group und of the results and cash flows for that period. Ih preparing the
financiul stutements for the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2007, the Directors have selected suituble uccounting policies und
gpplied them consistently, maude judgments and estimutes that are prudent, fair and reusonuble and prepdaured the
financial statements on u goiny concerh buasis. The statement by the auditors of the Company regurding their reporting
responsibilities on the finuncial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on puyge 32 of
the annhudl report.

18
&
ANNUAL REPORT 2007



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # @ ¥ % AR5 I

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board hus the overdll responsibility for maintaining u sound and effective system of interhal control und for
reviewiny its effectiveness, purticulurly in respect of the confrols on financial, operutionul, compliunce und risk
munuyement, to uchieve the Compuny’s business strateyies und the Group’s business operutions. The Directors have
udopted un internal control policy of the Group. The internal control policy is fundumental to the successful operation
and duy-to-duy running of a business und it ussists the Company in achievinyg its business objective. The policy has
been developed with primary objective of providing yenerul guidance und recommenduations on a basic framework
of internudl control und risk munuygement. The Compuny’s intfernal control systems comprise u well estublished
orgunisutionul structure und comprehensive policies und stundurds. Procedures have been designed to sufeguurd
ussets aguinst unauthorised use or disposition, to ensure maintenaunce of proper uccounting records for the provision of
reliuble financiul information for internal use or for publicution, und to ensure compliunce with upplicuble laws und
regulutions. The purpose of the Compuny’s internul control is to provide reusonuble, but not ubsolute, ussurunce
aguinst material misstatement or loss und to mManage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems und
achievement of the Compuny’s objective.

The Directors have conducted an annudl review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group,
covering ull muterial controls, includinyg finunciul, operationul und compliunce controls und risk munagement functions.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Bourd mukes its endeuvour fo muintuin un onygoinyg und transparent communication with dll shareholders and, in
particulur, use general meetinygs to communicute with shareholders and encouruge their purticipation. The Company
also uses vdrious other meuns of communicution with its shareholders, such ds publicution of annual and interim
reports, unhouhcements, circulars and additional information on the Group’s business uctivities und development on
the Compuny’s website: www.itfc.com.hk. Detuils of the poll vote procedures, which comply with the Listing Rules und
the Bye-luws of the Compuny, have been included in the Company’s circulars sent to shareholders of the Compuny
and in the proceedinys of the Compuny’s yenerul meetings. During the yeur under review, some resolutions put
forwurd at the speciul generul meetings hud been conducted by wuy of poll and poll results were published in the
newspupers und posted on the websites of the Compuny und the Honhy Konhy Stock Exchunyge in compliunce with the
requirements of the then Listing Rules.

By Order of the Bourd

Law Hon Wa, William
Compuny Secretury

Hony Kony, 27th July, 2007
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors have pleusure to present their report and the audited cohsolidated financial statements of the Group for
the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Compuny is un investment holdingy compuny.

The principul uctivities und purticulars of the Compuny’s principul subsidiuries und the Group’s principul ussociutes us
ut 31st Murch, 2007 are set out in hotes 58 und 22, respectively, to the consoliduted finunciul stutements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An anualysis of the Group’s revenue und contribution to operating results for the year ended 31st Murch, 2007 is set out
in note 6 to the consoliduted finunciul stutements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the yeur ended 31st March, 2007 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
puye 33 of the unnhuul report.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinury share sutisfied in cush with an option to elect scrip dividend of ordinury
shures, umountiny to upproximutely HK$27,954,000, wus puid to the holders of ordinury shares during the year. The
directors recommended the puyment of u final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinury share in cush with an option to
elect scrip dividend und u bonus issue of one new ordinury share credited as fully puid for every five ordinary shares
held by holders of ordinary shares whose numes uppeur on the reyister of holders of ordinary shares on 15th October,
2007.

The directors resolved to puy u dividend of HK4.0 cents per redeemuble convertible preference shure in respect of the
tfwelve month period ending on but excluding 3rd November, 2007 to holders of redeemuble convertible preference
shares whose numes uppeur on the reyister of redeemuble convertible preference shares us ut the close of business
on 15th October, 2007.

RESERVES

Detdils of the movements in the reserves of the Group duriny the yeur ure set out in the consoliduted stutement of
chunyes in eyuity on puges 36 und 37 of the unhnudul report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The ayygreyute turnover uttributuble to the Group’s five lurgest customers during the yeur were less than 30% of the
Group’s total turhover.

The ugyreyute purchuses attributes to the Group’s five largest suppliers during the year were less thun 30% of the
Group’s totul purchuses.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results und of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the pust five financial yedars is set out on puye
93 of the unnhudl report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Detuils of the movements in the property, plunt and eyuipment of the Group during the yeur are set out in hote 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Detuils of revaluution uhd movements of the investment properties of the Group during the year ure setf out in hote 19
tfo the consoliduted financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continuea)

SHARE CAPITAL

Detdils of the movements in the shure cupital of the Compuny during the year are set out in note 46 to the consoliduted
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Compunhies Act 1981 of Bermudua (us amended), the contributed surplus account of the Compuany is avdiluble
for distribution. However, the Compuny cunnot declare or puy u dividend, or muke a distribution out of confributed
surplus if:

(u) itis, or would after the payment be, unhable to pay ifs liabilities us they become due; or

(b) the reulisuble vulue of its ussets would thereby be less thun the ugygreyate of its liubilities and its issued share
cupital und share premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, subject to the restrictions as stipulated in the Compunies Act 1981 of Bermudu as
described ubove, the Compuny’s reserves avduiluble for distribution to shureholders were as follows:

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS 000

Contributed surplus 1,134,686 1,134,686
Accumuluted profits 70,114 64,520
1,204,800 1,199,206

SHARE OPTIONS

Detuils of the movements in the share options of the Compuny und of its subsidiaries during the yeur ure set out in hote
47 to the consoliduted finunciul statements.

BORROWINGS

Bunk borrowinygs und other louns repuyuble within one yeur or on demund ure clussified us current liubilities. Detuils of
the repuyment unalysis of bunk borrowinygs und other louns of the Group us ut 31st March, 2007 ure set out in hote 42
to the consoliduted financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the yeur und up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles (Chuirman)
Chau Mei Wah, Rosunnu

(Deputy Chuirmun und Manhaging Director)
Chun Kwok Chuen, Augustine

(formerly known us Chun Kwok Huhg)
Chun Fut Yan
Cheuny Hon Kit

Independent non-executive directors:
Chuck, Winston Culptor

Lee Kit Wah
Shek Lui Him, Abrahaum (uppointed on 26th June, 2006)
Wonyg Kum Cheony, Stanley (retired on 13th September, 2006)

In accordunce with Bye-law 98(A) of the Compuny’s Bye-luws, Mr. Chaun Fut Yan, Mr. Chuck, Winston Culptor und Mr. Lee
Kit Wah will retire by rotution ut the forthcominyg unnual generul meeting. All retiring directors, beiny eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The independent noh-executive directors ure uppointed for u specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until
the conclusion of the third annudl generdl meeting from the date of their lust re-election and in accordunce with the
Compuny’s bye-luws. No director proposed for re-election ut the forthcoming unnudl generul meeting hus u service
confract with the Group which is hot determinable by the Group within ohe year without payment of compensation,
other thun statutory compensution.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st Murch, 2007, the interests und short positions of the directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Compuny or uny ussociuted corporations, within the meuning of Part
XV of the Securities und Futures Ordihunce (the “SFO”), us recorded in the reyister of the Compuny reqyuired to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or us otherwise hotified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kony Limited
(the "Hony Kony Stock Exchaunhge”) pursuunt to the Model Code for Securities Trunsactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities oh the Hony Kony Stock
Exchunge (the “Listing Rules”) were us follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in ordinary shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

Approximate

Number of percentage of the
ordinary shares issued ordinary
Long position/ of the share capital
Name of director Capacity Short position Company held of the Company
Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles Interest of Lony position 642,939,242 34.33%
conftrolled
corporution
(Note)
Note: Guluxywuay Investments Limited ("Guluxywauy”) wus u wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinuview Internutionul Limited

(“Chinaview”) which wus, in turh, wholly owned by Dr. Chan Kwok Keuny, Charles. Dr. Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles wus
deemed to be interested in 642,939,242 ordinary shures of the Compuny held by Galuxywuy.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of Hanny Holdings Limited (“Hanny”)

Number of
underlying shares
(in respect of

Approximate

Number of unlisted equity percentage of

Long position/ shares of derivatives) the issued share

Name of director Capacity Short position Hanny held of Hanny held capital of Hanny

Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles Interest of controlled Lony position 169,979,504 - 67.23%

corporution (Note 1) (Note 1)

Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles Interest of confrolled Lony position - 11,304,682 4.47%
corporations (Note 1) (Note 1)

Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles Beneficiul owner Lony position 1,627,697 - 0.64%

Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles Beneficiul owner Lony position - 315,756 0.12%
(Note 2)

Chun Kwok Chuen, Auyustine Beneficiul owner Lony position 1,600,000 - 0.63%

Cheuny Hon Kit Beneficiul owner Lony position 6 - 0.00%

Shek Lai Him, Abrahum Beneficiul owner Lony position 32 - 0.00%

Notes: 1. The shures of Huhny were held by un indirect wholly-owhed subsidiary of the Compuny. The Compuny, through its

wholly-owned subsidiaries, ulso held the 2% convertible bonds of Hunny due 2011 with un auggreyute principdl
umount of HK$101,742,150. Upon full conversion of such convertible bonds ut un initiul conversion price of HKS9
per shure of Hunny (subject to udjustments), 11,304,682 shares of Hunny would be issued to indirect wholly-owhed
subsidiuries of the Compuny.

By virtue of his deemed interests in upproximutely 34.33% of the issued ordinury share cupitul of the Compuny, Dr.
Chun Kwok Keuhy, Churles wus deemed to be interested in these shares und underlying shures of Hunny.

2. Dr. Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles ownhed the 2% convertible bonds of Hunny due 2011 in the principal umount of
HK$2,841,810. Upon full conversion of such convertible bonds ut un initiul conversion price of HK$9 per shure of
Hunny (subject to udjustments), 315,756 shures of Hunny would be issued to Dr. Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(c) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of Trasy Gold Ex Limited (“Trasy”)

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued
Long position/ shares of share capital
Name of director Capacity Short position Trasy held of Trasy
Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles Interest of Lonhy position 1,5668,681,139 56.45%
conftrolled
corporution
(Note)
Note: The shures of Trusy were held by un indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compuny. By virtue of his deemed interests

in approximately 34.33% of the issued ordinury shure cupital of the Compuny, Dr. Chan Kwok Keuny, Charles wus
deemed to be interested in these shares of Trusy.

(d) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of PYl Corporation Limited (“PYI”)

Number of
underlying shares
(in respect of

the share options Approximate

Number of (unlisted equity percentage of

Long position/ shares of derivatives)) the issued share

Name of director Capacity Short position PYI held of PYIl held capital of PYI

Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles Interest of controlled Lony position 402,368,507 - 26.97%

corporation (Note 1)

Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles Beneficiul owner Lony position 11,915,186 - 0.80%

Chau Mei Wah, Rosunnu Beneficiul owner Long position - 1,630,000 0.11%
(Note 2)

Chun Fut Yan Beneficiul owner Lony position - 2,500,000 0.17%
(Note 2)

Cheuny Hon Kit Beneficiul owner Lony position 400 - 0.00%

Shek Lai Him, Abraham Beneficiul owner Lony position 2,000 - 0.00%

Notes: 1. The shares of PYl were held by un indirect wholly-ownhed subsidiury of the Compuny. By virfue of his deemed

interests in upproximutely 34.33% of the issued ordinury share capitul of the Compuny, Dr. Chan Kwok Keuhy,

Churles wus deemed to be intferested in these shares of PYI.

2. Ms. Chuu Mei Wuh, Rosunna und Mr. Chun Fut Yan held share options (which were grunted on 28th December,
2004) with rights to subscribe for 1,630,000 shures of PYI und 2,500,000 shures of PYI respectively ut HKS1.5 per
shure of PYI (subject to udjustments) during the period from 28th December, 2004 to 26th August, 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(e) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of Burcon NutraScience Corporation

()]

(“Burcon”™)

Number of
underlying shares
(in respect of

the share options Approximate

Number of (unlisted equity percentage of

Long position/ shares of derivatives)) the issued share

Name of director Capacity Short position Burcon held of Burcon held capital of Burcon
Chau Mei Wah, Rosunnu Beneficiul owner Lony position 321,074 - 1.31%
Chau Mei Wah, Rosunnu Beneficiul owner Lony position - 61,000 0.25%

Interests and

short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited

(“Wing On Travel”)

Number of
underlying shares
(in respect of Approximate
Number of unlisted equity percentage of
shares of derivatives) the issued
Long position/ Wing On of Wing On share capital of
Name of director Capacity Short position Travel held Travel held Wing On Travel
Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles  Interest of controlled Lony position 135,740,481 - 22.23%
corporutions (Note 1)
Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles  Interest of controlled Lony position - 379,746,835 62.19%
corporation (Note 1)
Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles  Beneficiul owner Lony position 4,529,800 - 0.74%
Cheuny Hon Kit Beneficiul owner Lony position - 4,000,000 0.66%
(Note 2)

Notes: 1.

25

11,406,000 shares of Wing On Travel were held by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiury of the Compuny. 124,334,481
shures of Wing On Truvel were held by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Chihu Entferprises Limited (*CEL") of
which Group Dragon Investments Limited ("GDI”) indirectly owned upproximutely 65.22% of the effective equity
interest. Hunny indirectly held upproximutely 98.92% of the issued shure capitul of GDI. The Compuny indirectly
held dgpproximutely 67.23% of the issued shure cupital of Hunny. CEL held u convertible note in the principul
umount of HK$300,000,000. Upon full conversion of such convertible note ut un initiul conversion price of HKS$0.79
per share of Wing On Travel (subject to udjustments), 379,746,835 shures of Wing On Travel would be issued to
CEL. By virtue of his deemed interests in upproximutely 34.33% of the issued ordinary share cupitul of the Compuny,
Dr. Chun Kwok Keuhy, Churles wus deemed to be interested in these shares und underlying shures of Wihy On
Travel.

Mr. Cheuny Hon Kit held shure options (which were yrunted on 22nd June, 2006) with rights to subscribe for
4,000,000 shures of Wing On Truvel ut HK$0.728 per share of Wing On Truvel (subject to udjustments) during the
period from 22nd June, 2006 to 21st June, 2008.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Hanny, Trasy, PYI, Burcon und Winy On Travel ure ussociuted corporutions of the Compuny within the meuniny of Part
XV of the SFO.

Dr. Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles wus, by virfue of his deemed interest in upproximately 34.33% of the issued ordinury
shure cupitul of the Compuny, deemed to be interested in the shures und underlying shares (in respect of eqyuity
derivatives), if auny, of the ussociuted corporations (within the meuniny of Purt XV of the SFO) of the Compuny held by
the Group under Purt XV of the SFO.

Save us disclosed ubove, us ut 31st Murch, 2007, none of the directors und chief executives of the Compuny had uny
interests und short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Compuny or uny ussociated corporations
(within the meuning of Purt XV of the SFO) us recorded in the reyister of the Compuny reyuired to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or us otherwise notified to the Compuny und the Hony Kony Stock Exchunyge pursuunt to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
(a) Share Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 16th January, 2002

As at 31st March, 2007, there were ho outstanding shure options yranted by the Compuany pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Compuny. No share options were grunted, exercised, cuncelled or lapsed during the yeur.
Detuils of the shure option scheme of the Compuny dre set out in hote 47 to the consoliduted finunciul stutements.

(b) Pre-IPO Share Option Plan of Trasy adopted on 6th November, 2000 and Share Option Scheme of Trasy adopted on
30th April, 2002

As ut 31st March, 2007, there were no share options granted by Trasy to the directors of the Compuny pursuaunt to
the pre-IPO share option plan und share option scheme of Trasy. Detdils of the pre-IPO share option plan und
share option scheme of Trasy are set out in hote 47 to the consoliduted finuncial stutements.

(c) Share Option Schemes of Hanny adopted on 21st August, 2001 and 17th March, 2003

Detuils of the shure option schemes of Hunny were set out in hote 47 to the consoliduted financiul statements and
the movements in share options yrunted by Hanny to the directors of the Compuny during the yeur are us follows:

Number of shares of
Hanny to be issued upon
exercise of the share options

Exercise Balance Lapsed Balance

price per as at during as at

Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period share 1.4.2006 the year 31.3.2007
HK$

Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles 31.8.2001 31.8.2001 fo 30.8.2006 2.9888 4,000,000 (4,000,000) -

Chun Kwok Chuen, Augustine 31.8.2001 31.8.2001 fo 30.8.2006 2.9888 1,750,000 (1,750,000) -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Suve us disclosed in hote 56 to the consoliduted finunciul stfutements, no confracts of sighificance to which the
Compuny or uny of its subsidiaries wus u party und in which u director of the Compuny hud u muteriul interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or uf any fime during the yeur.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Interests of the directors of the Compuny in competing businesses as at 31st March,

disclosed pursuunt to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were us follows:

Name of director

Chan Fut Yun

Cheuny Hon Kit

Cheuny Hon Kit

Cheuny Hon Kit

Cheuny Hon Kit

Cheuny Hon Kit

Cheuny Hon Kit

Cheuny Hon Kit

Cheuny Hon Kit

Cheuny Hon Kit

27

Name of entity the
businesses of which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group

Macau Prime Properties
Holdinys Limited ("MPP")
and its subsidiaries

MPP and its subsidiaries

Wing On Travel and
its subsidiaries

Chinu Development Limited

Artnos Limited

Co-Forward Development
Ltd.

Orient Centre Limited

Super Time Limited

Asiu City Holdinys Ltd.

Supreme Best Ltd.

Description of businesses
of the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with
businesses of the Group

Property investment in Hong Kony
und property development und
frading in the People’s Republic
of Chinu (the "PRC") (excludiny
Honhy Kony und Mucuu)

Property investment in Hony Kony
und property development und
tfradinyg in the PRC (excludiny
Honhy Kony und Mucuu)

Property investment in Hony Kony
und property development in
the PRC (excludinyg
Hony Kony und Mucuu)

Property investment in Hony Kony

Property investment in Hony Kony

Property investment in Hony Kony

Property investment in Hony Kony

Property investment in Hony Kony

Property investment in Hony Kony

Property investment in Hony Kony

2007 which are required to be

Nature of interest
of the director
in the entity

As munayiny director of MPP

As chairmun of MPP

As munayinyg director of
Wing On Travel

As u director and
u shareholder of
Chinu Development Limited

As a director und
u shareholder of
Arthos Limited

As u director und
u shureholder of
Co-Forwurd Development
Ltd.

As a shareholder of
Orient Centre Limited

As u director and
u shareholder of
Super Time Limited

As a director und
u shareholder of
Asia City Holdinygs Ltd.

As u shareholder of
Supreme Best Ltd.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES (continuea)

The chunyes in detdils of the directors’ interests in competing businesses previously disclosed in the annual report of
the Compuny for the yeur ended 31st March 2006 were due to Hanny, which hus the businesses of property investment
in Hony Kony und property development und fradiny in the PRC (excluding Hony Konhy unhd Mucuu), becume u
subsidiary of the Compuny in December 2006.

Havinyg considered the nuture, size und scope of the ubove business, the directors of the Compuny believe that there
wus unlikely to be uny sighificunt competition with the businesses of the Group us ut 31st Murch, 2007.

Save us disclosed ubove, hone of the directors of the Compuny wus interested in any business apart from the Group'’s
businesses which competed or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group us ut
31st Murch, 2007.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

As at 31st March, 2007, so far us is known fo the directors und the chief executives of the Compuny, the interests or
short positions of substuntiul shareholders/other persons in the shares und underlying shares of the Compuny us recorded
in the register of the Compuny required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were us follows:

(a) Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Approximate
Number of percentage of the

ordinary issued ordinary

Long position/ shares of the share capital

Name Capacity Short position Company held of the Company

Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles Interest of controlled Lony position 642,939,242 34.33%
corporution (Note 1)

Chinuview Interest of controlled Lony position 642,939,242 34.33%
corporution (Note 1)

Guluxywauy Beneficial owner Lony position 642,939,242 34.33%

Ny Yuen Lun, Mucy Interest of spouse Lony position 642,939,242 34.33%

(Note 1)
PMA Cuapitul Munugement Investment Munayer Lony position 223,358,500 11.93%
Limited (Note 2)
Notes: 1. Guluxywuy wus u wholly-ownhed subsidiury of Chinuview which wus, in furn, wholly ownhed by Dr. Chun Kwok

Keuny, Churles. Ms. Ny Yueh Lun, Macy is the spouse of Dr. Chun Kwok Keuny, Chuarles. Chinaview, Dr. Chun
Kwok Keuny, Charles und Ms. Ny Yueh Lun, Mucy were deemed to be interested in the ordinury shares of the
Compuny held by Guluxywday.,

2. So fur us known to the directors of the Compuny, Diversified Asiun Strutegies Fund is munuyged by PMA Cupitul
Munuygement Limited und the interests in the ordinury shares of the Compuny held by PMA Cupitul Munhugement
Limited include the ordinury shares of the Compuny held by Diversified Asian Strategies Fund us mentioned in the
section heuded “Interests und short positions of other persons in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Compuny” in this report.
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3

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continuea)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO (continued)

(b) Interests and short positions of other persons in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of
underlying shares Approximate
Number of (in respect of percentage of
ordinary the listed equity the issued share
Long position/ shares of the  derivatives) of the capital of
Name Capacity Short position Company held Company held the Company
CEF Holdings Limited Interest of controlled Long position 2,773,046 - 0.15%
("CEF Holdinys") corporations (Note)
CEF Holdings Interest of controlled Lony position - 213,015,153 11.37%
corporations (Note)
Cunudiun Imperial Bunk Interest of controlled Lony position 2,773,046 - 0.15%
of Commerce corporations (Note)
Cunudiun Imperial Bunk Interest of controlled Lony position - 213,015,153 11.37%
of Commerce corporutions (Note)
Cheuny Kong (Holdings) Interest of controlled Lonyg position 2,773,046 - 0.15%
Limited ("CKH") corporations (Note)
CKH Interest of controlled Lony position - 213,015,153 11.37%
corporations (Note)
Li Ku-Shing Unity Trustee Trustee (Nofe) Lony position 2,773,046 - 0.15%
Compuny Limited ("TUT1")
Tuml Trustee (Note) Lony position - 213,015,153 11.37%
Li Ku=Shing Unity Trustee Trustee & beneficiary Lony position 2,773,046 - 0.15%
Corporation Limited (“TDT1") of u frust (Note)
TDT1 Trustee & beneficiary Lony position - 213,015,153 11.37%
of u trust (Note)
Li Ku-Shing Unity Trustcorp Trustee & beneficiary Lony position 2,773,046 - 0.15%
Limited (*TDT2") of u frust (Note)
D12 Trustee & beneficiury Lony position - 213,015,163 11.37%
of u trust (Note)
Li Ku-shing Interest of controlled Lony position 2,773,046 - 0.15%
corporations & founder
of discretionary trusts
(Note)
Li Ku-shing Interest of controlled Lony position - 213,015,163 11.37%
corporutions & founder
of discretionury trusts
(Note)
Deutsche Bunk Aktiengesellschuft — Security interest Lony position 201,438,795 - 10.75%
Diversified Asiun Strutegies Fund  Beneficiul owner Long position 104,156,194 - 5.56%
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO (continued)

(b) Interests and short positions of other persons in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Note: So fur us known to the directors of the Compuny, the humber of ordinury shares und underlying shures (in respect of
listed equity derivatives) of the Compauny held by Asiuland Investment Limited (“Asialand”) und CEF (Cupital Murkets)
Limited ("CEF Cupitul Murkets”) were 50,849,968 und 164,938,231 respectively. CEF Cupitul Murkets wus wholly owned
by CEF Holdings. Asiulund wus wholly owned by CEF M B Investments Limited which wus in furn wholly owned by CEF
Holdinys.

Euch of CKH und CIBC Holdings (Cuymun) Limited wus entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more
of the voting power ut the yenerdl meetings of CEF Holdinys. CIBC Holdings (Cuymun) Limited wus wholly owhed by
Cunudiun Imperiul Bunk of Commerce. CEF M B Investments Limited wus deemed to be interested in the ordinury
shures und/or underlying shures (in respect of listed eqyuity derivatives) of the Compuny held by Asialund. CEF Holdinys,
CIBC Holdihys (Cuymaun) Limited und Cunudiun Imperiul Bunk of Commerce were ull deemed to be interested in the
ordinury shures und underlying shares (in respect of listed eyuity derivatives) of the Compuny held by Asialund and
CEF Cupitul Maurkets.

Li Ku-Shing Unity Holdinys Limited, of which euch of Mr. Li Ku-shing, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor und Mr. Li Tzar Kui, Richurd wus
interested in one-third of the enfire issued shaure cupitul, owned the entire issued shure capital of TUT1. TUT1 us trustee of
The Li Ka-Shinyg Unity Trust, fogether with certauin compunies which TUT1 us trustee of The Li Ku-Shing Unity Trust wus
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the votiny power ut their generdl meetinys, held
more thun one-third of the issued share cupitul of CKH.

In addition, Li Ku-Shing Unity Holdinygs Limited ulso owned the entire issued shure cupital of TDT1 us trustee of The Li Ku-
Shing Unity Discretionary Trust ("DT1”) and TDT2 us trustee of unother discretionary trust (*DT2"). Each of TDT1 und TDT2
held units in The Li Ku-Shing Unity Trust.

By virtue of the SFO, euch of Mr. Li Ku-shing beiny the settlor und muy beiny regyurded us u founder of euch of DT1 und
DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, CKH, TUTT, TDT1 und TDT2 wus deemed to be interested in the ordinury shares und
underlying shures (in respect of listed equity derivutives) of the Compuny held by Asiulund und CEF Cupitul Murkets.

Suve us disclosed ubove, no other purties were recorded in the reyister of the Compuny required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO us haviny interests or short positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the Compuny
us ut 31st March, 2007.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out in hote 50 to the consoliduted finunciul stutements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There dre ho provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws, or the applicuble laws of Bermudu, which
would oblige the Compuany to offer hew shares oh a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As ut the dute of this report, the Compuny hus muintained the prescribed minimum public flout under the Listing Rules,
bused on the informution thut is publicly uvuiluble to the Compuny und within the knowledye of the directors.

30
&
ANNUAL REPORT 2007 .



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # @ ¥ % AR5 I

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, neither the Compuny nor any of its subsidiaries purchused, sold or redeemed
any of Compuny’s listed securities.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Detuils of sighificant events occurring ufter the bulunce sheet date are set out in hote 55 to the consoliduted financiul
statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming unnuul generul meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmutsu
as the external auditor of the Compuny.

On behulf of the Bourd

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chudirman

Hony Kony, 27th July, 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF ITC CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporuted in Bermudau with limited liability)

We have audited the cohsoliduted financial stautements of ITC Corporation Limited (the "Compuny”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to us the "Group”) set out on pages 33 to 92, which comprise the consolidated balunce sheet as
at 31st March, 2007, and the cohsoliduted income statement, the consolidated statement of chanyges in equity and the
cohsoliduted cush flow statement for the year then ended, and g summary of sighificant uccounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Compuny are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consoliduted
financiul stutements in uccordunce with Hony Konyg Financiul Reporting Stundurds issued by the Honyg Kony Institute of
Certified Public Accountunts und the disclosure reyuirements of the Hony Kohy Compunies Ordinunce. This responsibility
includes desighinyg, implementing uand muintuining internul control relevant to the prepurution und the frue und fuir
presentation of the consoliduted finuncidl stutements thut ure free from materiul misstutement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting und upplying agppropriate accounting policies; and muking accounting estimutes that are reusonable
in the circumstunces.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express un opinion on these consoliduted finunciul statements bused on our uudit und to report
our opinion solely to you, us a body, in accordunce with Section 90 of the Bermudu Compuhnies Act, and for ho other
purpose. We do hot ussume responsibility fowurds or accept liubility to auny other person for the contents of this report.
We conhducted our audit in accordunce with Hong Konhyg Standards on Auditing issued by the Hony Kony Institute of
Certified Public Accountunts. Those standards require thut we comply with ethicual requirements and plan und perform
the audit fo obtuin reusonuble ussurance us to whether the consoliduted finunciul statements ure free from materidl
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtuin audit evidence ubout the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financiul stutements. The procedures selected depend on the uuditor’s judgment, including the ussessment of the risks
of muteriul misstutement of the consoliduted financial stutements, whether due to fraud or error. In makiny those risk
ussessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation und true and fuir presentution of
the consoliduted financiul stutements in order to desiyn uudit procedures thut are uppropriate in the circumstunces,
but hot for the purpose of expressing un opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internul control. An audit ulso
includes evaluating the uppropriateness of uccounting policies used und the reusonableness of accounting estimutes
made by the directors, us well us evaluuting the overdll presentution of the consoliduted finunciul statements.

We believe that the dudit evidence we have obtuined is sufficient und uppropriate to provide u busis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consoliduted finuncial statements give u true and fair view of the state of uffuirs of the Group as at
31st March, 2007 und of the Group’s profit und cush flows for the yeur then ended in uaccordunhce with Hony Kony
Financial Reporting Standurds und have been properly prepured in uccordunce with the disclosure reyuirements of
the Hong Kony Compunies Ordinunce.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accouhtunts

Hony Kony, 27th July, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

2007 2006
Notes HK$°000 HKS 000
(Restated)
Revenue 6 493,298 252,959
Cost of sules (366,676) (205,884)
Gross profit 126,622 47,075
Other income 7 22,714 2,331
Administrative expenses (96,198) (59,199
Impairment losses 9 (10,014) -
Guin on disposul of avdiluble-for-sule investments 8,209 -
Other guins (losses), het 10 79,733 (1,071)
Finunce costs 11 (39,450) (28,012)
Discount on ucyuisitions 12 560,055 2,578
Allowunce for umounts due from ussociutes und
a related compuny (2,731) (3,064)
Net guin (loss) onh disposul und dilution of interests in
ussociutes 13 1,893 (79.530)
Share of results of ussociutes 248,742 165,328
Profit before tuxution 14 899,575 46,436
Taxation 15 (8,695) -
Profit for the year 890,880 46,436
Attributuble to:
Equity holders of the Compuny 843,929 50,289
Minority interests 46,951 (3.853)
890,880 46,436
Distributions 16 59,191 32,201
HK cents HK cents
Earninys per shure 17
Busic 45.6 4.4
Diluted 39.0 3.8
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 31ST MARCH, 2007

2007 2006
Notes HK$°000 HK$’'000
Non-current assets
Property, plunt and equipment 18 179,765 50,835
Investment properties 19 150,421 4,016
Prepuid leuse puyments 20 87,437 89,651
Intangible assets 21 4,580 1,080
Interests in ussociutes 22 1,594,047 1,179,749
Debt portion of convertible hotes 23 274,304 -
Conversion options embedded in convertible notes 23 98,466 -
Deposits puid for ucyuisition of subsidiaries 24 50,000 -
Deposits for ucqyuisition of long-term investments 25 145,000 -
Puyments for ucquisition of interest in properties 26 58,830 -
Avuiluble-for-sule investments 27 1,033,823 83,730
Deferred tux ussets 45 1,464 -
3,678,137 1,409,061
Current assets
Inventories 239 137
Prepuid leuse puyments 20 2,214 2,214
Other ussets 28 229,288 -
Debtors, deposits und prepuyments 29 404,029 14,370
Margin account receivubles 30 17,523 10,791
Deposits puid for ucyuisition of investments held
for tradiny 31 73,289 -
Amounts due from ussociutes 32 500,050 205,083
Amounts due from reluted compunies 33 7,262 247,362
Louns receivuble 34 340,549 205,400
Finauncial ussets desighuted at fair value through
profit or loss 35 147,238 82,744
Investments held for tradiny 36 626,649 55,730
Tux recoveruble 1,438 -
Short term bunk deposits, bunk bulunces und cush 37 282,304 227,808
2,632,072 1,051,639
Current liabilities
Margin account puyubles 30 6,794 25,048
Creditors und auccrued expenses 38 91,884 25,383
Amounts due fo ussociutes 39 163,015 123
Derivutive financiul instruments 40 222 460
Redeemuble convertible preference shares 41 286,137 -
Tax puyuble 63,977 -
Borrowinys - due within one yeur 42 517,100 2,450
Bunk overdrufts 43 71,599 28,217
1,200,728 81,681
Net current assets 1,431,344 969,958
Total assets less current liabilities 5,109,481 2,379,019
34 i
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

AT 31ST MARCH, 2007

2007 2006
Notes HK$°000 HKS 000
Non-current liabilities
Redeemuble convertible preference shures 41 - 286,811
Borrowinys - due ufter one year 42 141,350 60,100
Convertible hotes payauble 44 556,980 -
Deferred tux liubilities 45 39,091 99
737,421 347,010
Net assets 4,372,060 2,032,009
Capital and reserves
Shure cupitul 46 187,298 183.750
Reserves 2,623,128 1,826,195
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 2,810,426 2,009,945
Convertible notes reserve of u subsidiury 55,279 -
Minority interests 1,506,355 22,064
Total equity 4,372,060 2,032,009

The consoliduted finunciul statements on puyges 33 to 92 were upproved und uuthorised for issue by the Bourd of Directors
onh 27th July, 2007 und are sighed on its behulf by:

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna
Chudirman Deputy Chairmun and Mahaging Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

Atfributable fo equity holders of fhe Company

Convertile
Reserve Capital Properly  Investment Convertiole ~ Preference notes
Share Share  Confributed on  redempfion Other  revoluaion revaluation  Translafion nofes share Refained feserve of Minority
copital premium suplus actlluisilion 165e1Ve 165e1ve 16seIve 1eseve 1eseve 1eserve resenve Elolits Total o subsidiory interests Total
HK5 000 HIS 000 HES 000 K000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HES 000 HKS 000 HES 000 HKS 000 HK5'000
(Noe ()~ (Note (b)) (Note (c))
At Tst A, 2005
-usonginqusfured 107201 050 1108927 - 908 1 2 0 3413 5337 il 311,181 1,609,989 - N9 1639648
- effgct of chunge n
uccounfing
wolicy (Note 3) - - - - - - - - - - - 1154719 115479 - - 115479
- Uy resfuted 107,201 050 1108927 - 908 126 24 0 3413 5337 il 06600 1726468 - N9 1700
Exchunge diferences
arisihg from franglation
of foreign operations - - - - - - - - 312 - - - 310 - - 312
Shure of post-ucyuistion
Teserve movements of
ussociufes - - - (58.374) - 4090 - (0.175) 24 - - - (63,199) - - (63,198)
Surplus ursing from
fevaluation of
-{und und bulaings - - - - - - Pl - - - - - W - - il
- availableforsule
nvestments - - - - - - - 824 - - - - 82U - - 8.2
Deferred fux liabilfy
arishg on revalution
of lund und buldings - - - - - - [61) - - - - - (1) - - 61}
Net (expense) income
fecoghised
directly in equity - - - (58.374) - 4090 u3 1408 3,386 - - - (36,606) - - (36,606)
Prof for the yeur - - - - - - - - - - - 50,269 50,269 - (3.853) 16,43
Releused on disyosul
and diufon of inferests
n ussoclates - - - - - (1.346) - 79 (12,308) - - - (1293) - - (12985)
Totul recognised income
and exwenses for fhe yeur - - - (58.374) - 210 13 14768 8922 - - 50,269 14 - (3.859) (3,109)
[ssue of shures:
- 0h conversion of
converfile notes 54834 114,984 - - - - - - - (6.337) - - 164,481 - - 164,481
- under scriy dividend
scheme i) (275) - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- for wising fund 21440 128,563 - - - - - - - - - - 150003 - - 150,003
Distdoutions uid - - - - - - - - - - - (32201) 32201) - - 2200
Acyuistion of udaitional
Inferests in subsiciuries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (3.742) (8.742)
Credit urishg on scry
dividends - - - - - - - - - - - 1448 1448 - - 1446
At 31sf March, 2008
Us restuted 183,750 878 1108927 (58.374) 908 3410 1 1959 B - i o196 200994 - 0064 2082009
Eichunge diferences
urisihg from franglufion
of foreign operutions - - - - - - - - 2165 - - - 2168 - (7.190) (5.025)
Shure of post-ucquisttion
Teserve movements of
ussociutes - - - (32134) - 1 - (10,306) 187 - - - (15,450) - 5914 (9500
Surplus urising fiom
Tevaluation of;
-lund und buldings - - - - - - 8943 - - - - - 8943 - - 8943
- Gvuiloble-for-sule
nvestments - - - - - - - 340 - - - - 3409 - 20% 5,684
Deferred to liabiity
urisihng on revaludtion
of lund und buldings - - - - - - (2.74) - - - - - (2.74) - - (2.748)
Ne (expense) income
fecognised directly
n eyul - - - (32134) - i 6197 (6.857) 900 - - - (3.645) - %9 (2.686)
Profi for the yeur - - - - - - - - - - - 843929 843929 - 146,91 890,860
Releused on dlsposul und
diution of interests
In ussoclates - - - 4987 - (M - (8) (1817) - - - 3200 - - 3290
Releused on disyosul of
uvalable-for-sale
Investments - - - - - - - (8.241) - - - - (8.241) - - (8.241)
Totl recoghised income
and expenses for fhe year - - - VALY - 5 6197 (15,166) 27405 - - 843929 835,278 - 47910 883,183
Issue of shures;
- 0N conversion of
redeemable converfiole
reference shures 0 85 - - - - - - - - 6) - 942 - - 942
- under scriy lividend
scheme 3458 (3.458) - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Distdoutions puid - - - - - - - - - - - (59.191) (59.191) - - (59.191)
Acuuistion of inferests
In subsidiories - - - 425 - - - (1.881) - - - 3143 5417 29 176580 182060
Acuuistion of uclifionol
Inferests in subsiciories - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (325,108) (325,108)
Credit uriihg on scry
dividends - - - - - - - - - - - 17780 17780 - - 17780
Dividend rUid fo minom&/
shureholders of u fiste
subsiciory - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (4159) (47159)
At 31st March, 2007 187,296 00179 1108927 (81,306) o 3% 6,064 (1,588) 53,09 - 88 1185 28104 529 150635 4372000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

Notes:

(C))

(b)

©

The conftributed surplus of the Group comprises the difference between the hominal umount of the ordinary shure cupitul issued
by the Compuny in exchunge for the nominul umount of the shure cupitul of u subsidiury ucquired pursuunt fo u corporute
reorgunisution on 24th Junuury, 1992 und the credits arising from the chunges in the cupitul und reserves of the Compuny in
other cupitul reorgunisutions und the transfers to the uccumulated losses us upproved by the bourd of directors from time to
time.

The reserve on ucquisition of the Group represents:

()  the umount of fuir value chunyes shured by the Group in relation to the ucquisition of udditional interest in u subsidiary of
un ussociute;

(i) the umount of fuir value chunyes shared by the Group in relution to the ucquisition of u subsidiary by un ussociute; und
(i)  the fair value chunges arising from the acquisition of u subsidiary by the Compauny.

Other reserve represents the statutory reserves required by the relevant rules und reyulutions of The People’s Republic of Chinu
(the "PRC") upplicuble to the Group’s ussociutes.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tuxation
Adjustments for:
Allowunce recoyhised (reversed) for:
- umounts due from ussociutes und reluted compunies
— debtors, deposits und prepuyments
- louns receivuble
Depreciution of property, plant und equipment
Releuse of prepuid leuse puyments
Discount on ucyuisition of:
— interests in subsidiuries
— additiondl interests in subsidiaries
Net (guin) loss onh disposul and dilution of interests in associutes
Net other (guin) loss urising from changes in fuir values of:
— conversion options embedded in convertible notes
- derivutive financial instruments
- financial assets desighated at fair value through profit or loss
- investments held for frading
— investment properties
Guin on disposul of:
- ygold bullion
— avuiluble-for-sule investments
— property, plunt und eyuipment
Impuirment loss on:
- intunyible ussets
— uvuiluple-for-sule investments
- yoodwill of ussociutes
Surplus arising from revaluation of land aund buildings
Interest expenses
Share of results of ussociates

Operuting cush flows before movements in working cupital
Increuse in inventories
Increuse in debtors, deposits und prepuyments
Increuse in murygin account receivubles
Deposits puid for ucyuisition of investments held for tradiny
Increuse in umounts due from ussociutes
Decreuse (increuse) in amounts due from reluted companies
Decreuse (increuse) in louns receivuble
Decreuse (increuse) in finunciul ussets designuted at

fuir value through profit or loss
Decreuse (increuse) in investments held for fradiny
(Decreuse) increuse in Muryin uccount puyubles
(Decreuse) increuse in creditfors und accrued expenses
Increuse in umounts due to ussociutes
Decreuse in umounts due to u reluted compuny
Increuse in derivutive finunciul instruments

Cush from (used in) operutions
Dividends received from ussociutes
Honyg Kony Profits Tux puid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2007 2006
HK$’000 HKS 000
(Restated)

899,575 46,436
2,731 3,064
2,612 773
(8,993) 3,475
10,235 4,440
2,214 2,214
(370,923) -
(189,132) (2,578)
(1,893) 79.530
32,239 -
222 460
(12,673) 289
(106,842) 940
7,018 (335)

- (7,075)
(8,209) -
(960) (295)

- 1,085

4,859 -
5,155 -
- (2,582)

39,450 28,012
(248,742) (165,328)
57,943 (7.,475)
(70) (22)
(83,683) (10,556)
(4,231) (10,766)
(73,289) -
(292,708) (196,662)
131,946 (248,677)
316,509 (185,644)
58,206 (82,744)
2,254 (561,934)
(24,678) 25,048
(46,545) 5,077
162,754 30
(190,969) -
(460) -
12,979 (764,325)
94,963 498,555
a7 -
107,925 (265,770)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

2007 2006
Note HK$°000 HKS 000
(Restated)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiuries, net of cash und
cush equivulents aucqyuired 48 (231,355) -
Acquisition of additionul interests in subsidiuries (135,974) (1,164)
Acquisition of convertible notes (121,322) -
Acquisition of udditionul interests in ussociutes (25,582) (55,335)
Additions to investment properties (10,358) -
Additions to uvdiluble-for-sule investments (11,823) (60,506)
Additions to property, plant und equipment (7,472) (10,967)
Refund of deposits puid for ucquisition of long-term
investments 45,175 -
Proceeds from disposul of avuiluble-for-sule investments 29,968 -
Proceeds from disposul of property, plunt and equipment 2,560 484
Acquisition of other intfunyible ussets - (325)
Proceeds from disposul of interests in ussociutes - 448,214
Proceeds from disposul of gold bullion - 71,757
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (466,183) 392,158
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Other louns ruised 500,000 -
Dividends puid 41,411) (30,755)
Repuyments of other louns (40,000) (18.,774)
Interest puaid (27,501) (25,885)
Repuyments of bunk borrowings (4,775) (2,450)
Dividend puid to minority shareholders of u listed subsidiury (4,159) -
Repuyment of obligution uhder u finance leuse (11n -
Net proceeds from issue of shares - 150,003
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 382,043 72,139
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23,785 198,527
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD 199,591 1,110
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (12,671) (46)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD 210,705 199.591
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Short term bunk deposits, bunk balances and cush 282,304 227,808
Less: bunk overdrufts (71,599) (28,217)
210,705 199,591

- 39
=
’ ANNUAL REPORT 2007



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # @© # % ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

1. GENERAL

The Compuny is un exempted compuny incorporuted in Bermudu with limited liability. Its shares ure listed on The
Stock Exchunyge of Hony Kony Limited (the “Hony Kony Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the reyistered office
and the principul pluce of business of the Compuny dre disclosed in the corporute information section to the
annudul report.

The consoliduted finunciul stutements ure presented in Hony Kony dollurs, which is ulso the functionul currency of
the Compuny.

The Compuny is un investment holding compuny. The principul uctivities of the Compuny’s principul subsidiaries
and the Group’s principal associates ure set out in hotes 58 und 22 respectively.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, g humber of hew standurd, umendments and
interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hony Kony Institute of Certified Public Accountunts (the “HKICPA"),
which are effective for uccounting periods beyginning on or ufter 1st December, 2005, 1st Juhuary, 2006 or 1st
Muarch, 2006. The udoption of the new HKFRSs hus had ho muteriul effect on how the results aund finuncial position
for the current or prior uccounting periods huve been prepured und presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment hus been required.

The Group hus hot eurly upplied the following hew or revised standards, umendment or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the Compuny unticipuate that the application of these
standurds, amendment und interpretations will have ho muterial impact on the results und the financial position of

the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Cupital Disclosures!

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowiny Costs?

HKFRS 7 Financiul Instruments: Disclosures’

HKFRS 8 Operuting Segments?

HK(FRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 23

HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reussessment of Embedded Derivutives?
HK(FRIC) - INT 10 Interim Financiul Reporting und Impuirment®
HK(FRIC) - INT 11 HKFRS 2 - Group und Treusury Share Transuctions®
HK(IFRIC) - INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements’

! Effective for unnuul periods beginning on or ufter 1st Junuury, 2007

2 Effective for unnuul periods beyinning on or ufter 1st Junuury, 2009

3 Effective for unnual periods beyginning on or ufter 1st May, 2006

4 Effective for unnuul periods beyinning on or ufter 1st June, 2006

5 Effective for unnuul periods beyinning on or ufter 1st November, 2006
6 Effective for unnuul periods beyinning on or ufter 1st March, 2007

7 Effective for unnuul periods beyinning on or ufter 1st Junuury, 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

3.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

In the current yeur, the Group und its ussociutes huve chunyed their uccounting policy for recoygnising the
purchuse of udditionul interest in u subsidiary. Prior to 1st April, 2006, such ucquisition wus recoghised by culculating
the goodwill or discount us the difference between the considerution puid for the udditional interest und the
currying umount of the het ussets of the subsidiury uttributuble to the additionul interest acyuired. Under the hew
accounting policy, the Group and its associutes revalue dll of the identifiuble ussets and liabilities of the subsidiary
to fuir value. Goodwill or discount arising on the purchuse of the udditionul interest is culculuted us the difference
between the cost of the udditionul inferest acyuired und the increuse in the Group’s or the ussociute’s interest,
bused on the fuir vulue of dll identifiuble ussets und liubilities of the subsidiury. The directors consider that by
adoption of this revised policy, the Group finuncial statements presents more Meuningful information based on the
nuture of the underlying operutions of the subsidiuries und ussociutes. The fuir value uttributuble to the additionul
inferest ucquired is hot recoygnised in the relevant assets or liabilities of the subsidiary and is recoghised by
debiting to the reserve on ucquisition.

This chanyge in uccounting policy hus been upplied retrospectively und has had no material impact on the profit
for the current yeur.

Accordingly, prior year udjustments were mude to uccount for the effect of the purchase of additionul interest in
certuin subsidiuries of the Group’s ussociute for the year ended 31st March, 2006. Compurative figures were
restuted uccordingly.

The finunciul effects of the chunyge in the uccounting policy ure thut the increuse in fuir value of net ussets
uttributuble to the udditionul interest ucyuired by the Group’s ussociute of upproximutely HK$58,374,000 hus
debited to the Group’s reserve on acquisition for the year ended 31st Murch, 2006, and the Group’s reftained
profits at 1st April, 2005 hus increused by approximately HK$115,479,000.

The effects on the profit for the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2006 und the respective finunciul statement line items are
summurised us follows:

2006

HKS 000

Profit for the yeur, us originudlly stuted 103,541
Increuse in het loss on disposul und dilution of interests in ussociutes (47,934)
Decreuse in share of results of ussociutes @171
Decreuse in profit for the yeur (57.,105)
As restated 46,436

Afttributable to:

Equity holders of the Compuny, us originully stuted 107,394
Adjustments arising from decreuse in profit for the yeur (57.105)

As restated 50,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost busis except for certuin properties
and finuncial instruments, which ure meusured dt revulued umounts or fuir values, us expluined in the uccounting
policies set out below.

The consoliduted finunciul statements huve been prepured in uccordunce with Hony Kony Finuncial Reporting
Stundurds (“the HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consoliduted finunciul stutements include upplicuble
disclosures required by the Rules Governiny the Listing of Securities on the Hony Kony Stock Exchunhye und by the
Hony Kony Compunies Ordihunce.

Basis of consolidation

The consoliduted finunciul stutements incorporate the financial statements of the Compuny und entities controlled
by the Compuany (its subsidiaries). Control is uchieved where the Compuny has the power to govern the financidl
and operuting policies of un entity so us to obtuin benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries ucyuired or disposed of during the yeur ure included in the consoliduted income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective dute of disposul, us appropriute.

Where necessary, adjustments ure made to the finuncial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accountiny
policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All infra-group fransactions, balances, income und expenses are eliminuted on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net ussets of consolidauted subsidiuries ure presented sepurutely from the Group’s equity
therein. Minority interests in the het ussets consist of the amount of those interests ut the dute of the originul
business combinution und the minority’s share of chunhges in equity since the dute of the combination. Losses
applicuble to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are dllocuted uguinst the
intferests of the Group except to the extent thut the minority hus a binding obligution and is uble to make un
addifional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acyuisition of subsidiaries is uccounted for using the purchuse method. The cost of the acquisition is meusured
at the ayyregate of the fuir values, at the dute of exchunye, of ussets ygiven, liubilities incurred or ussumed, und
equity instruments issued by the Group in exchunye for control of the acqyuiree, plus uny costs directly attributable
to the business combinution. The ucyuiree’s identifiuble ussets, liubilities und contingent liabilities thut meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recoynised at their fuir values ut the acyuisition
date.

If, ufter reussessment, the Group’s interest in the net fuir value of the acquiree’s identifiuble assets, liubilities und
contingent liubilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recoynised immediately in profit
or loss.

The interest of minority shureholders in the ucquiree is initiully meusured ut the minority’s proportion of the net fuir
vdlue of the ussets, liubilities und contingent liubilities recoynised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

4.

&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

On ucyuisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference between the fair values und the carrying vulues
of the underlying ussets aund liubilities uttributuble to the additionadl interest in a subsidiury acquired is debited to
reserve oh ducyuisition. Goodwill or discount urising onh the purchuse of the additionul interest is culculated us the
difference between the udditionul cost of the interest ucyuired und the increuse in the Group’s interest, bused on
the fair value of dll identifiuble ussets und liabilities of the subsidiary.

Business combinations achieved in stages

For business combinution thut involves more than one exchange trunsaction through successive shure purchuses,
the cost of the transuction and fuir value information at the date of euch exchunye trunsaction are freuted
sepurutely to determine the umount of uny discount on ucquisition/goodwill ussociated with that transaction. Any
adjustments to those fuir values relating to previously held interests is uccounted for us chunyes in reserve on
acyuisition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plunt und equipment, other than construction in proyress, ure stated at cost or fuir value less subseqyuent
accumulated depreciation und uccumulated impuirment losses.

Lund und buildinygs held for use in the production or supply of yoods or services, or for administrative purposes, ure
stated in the consolidauted bulance sheet at their revalued umount, being the fuir vulue at the dute of revaluation
less uny subseyuent uccumuluted depreciution und uny subsequent uccumuluted impuirment losses. Revuluations
are performed with sufficient regulurity such that the currying umount does not differ muteridlly from that which
would be determined using fuir values ut the bulance sheet dute.

Any revaluation increuse urising on revaluution of lund und buildinys is credited to the property revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses u revaluution decreuse of the sume usset previously recoynised us un
expense, in which cuse the increuse is credited to the consoliduted income stutement to the extent of the
decreuse previously churged. A decreuse in het currying amount drising on revuluation of un usset is deult with ds
an expense to the extent that it exceeds the bulance, if any, on the property revaluution reserve relating to u
previous revuluution of the sume usset. On the subseyuent sule or retirement of u revalued usset, the uttributuble
revaluution surplus is frunsferred to retdined profits.

No depreciution is provided in respect of freehold lund.

Depreciution is provided to write off the cost or fuir value of items of property, plunt und equipment, other thun
cohstruction in proyress, over their estimuted useful lives und ufter tuking info uccount of their estimuted residual
vdlue, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plunt und eyuipment is derecoyhised upon disposul or when ho future economic benefits ure
expected to urise from the continued use of the usset. Any yguin or loss urising oh derecoyhnition of the usset
(culculuted us the difference between the het disposul proceeds und the carrying umount of the item) is included
in the consoliduted income statement in the year in which the item is derecoynised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plunt and equipment in the course of construction for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is stuted at cost which includes dall development expenditure und the direct
costs attributable to such projects. Construction in proygress is hot depreciated until completion of construction
and the usset is avuiluble for intended use. The cost of completed construction works is fransferred to the appropriate
cuteyories of property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

On initial recoghition, investment properties ure meusured ut cost, including uny directly attributuble expenditure.
Subseqyuent to initial recoynition, investment properties are meusured using the fuir value model. Guins or losses
arising from changes in the fair vulue of investment property dure included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecoynised upoh disposul or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from its disposuls. Ahy guin or loss drising on derecoyhition
of the usset (culculuted us the difference between the net disposul proceeds und the currying amount of the
asset) is included in the consoliduted income statement in the year in which the item is derecoynised.

Interests in associates

An ussociute is un entity over which the investor has significunt influence and that is heither a subsidiary nor un
interest in u joint venture.

The results und ussets and liubilities of ussociutes ure incorporuted in these consoliduted finunciul stautements
using the equity method of uccounting. Under the eyuity method, investments in ussociutes ure curried in the
cohsoliduted bulunce sheet ut cost us udjusted for post-acqyuisition chaunyges in the Group’s shure of the net ussets
of the ussociute, less uny identified impuirment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of un ussociute equuls or
exceeds its interest in that ussociute (which includes uny long-term interests that, in substance, form purt of the
Group’s het investment in the ussociute), the Group discontinues recoynising its share of further losses. An udditionul
share of losses is provided for und u liubility is recoghised only to the extent that the Group hus incurred legul or
cohstructive obligutions or made puyments on behulf of that ussociute.

Any excess of the cost of ucquisition over the Group’s share of the net fuir vaulue of the identifiuble ussets, liubilities
and contihgent lidbilities of the ussociate recoynised ut the dute of ucyuisition is recoynised us goodwill und
such yoodwill is included within the currying umount of the investment und is ussessed for impuirment us purt of
the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s shure of the het fuir value of the identifiuble ussets, liubilities aund contingent liabilities
over the cost of ucquisition, ufter reussessment, is recoynised immediately in profit or loss.

Where u group entity transucts with an associate of the Group, profits und losses ure eliminuted to the extent of
the Group’s inferest in the relevunt ussociute.

Intangible assets

On initial recoynition, intfunyible ussets ucyuired sepurately other than from business combinations ure recoynised
at cost. The cost of such intunyible assets is their fair value ut the acquisition date. After initiul recoynition,
infunyible ussets with indefinite useful lives are curried at cost less uny identified impuirment loss.

Guins or losses urising from derecoynition of un intunyible usset ure meusured ut the difference between the net
disposul proceeds und the currying umount of the usset und dre recoynised in the consoliduted income stutement
when the usset is derecoynised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Infunyible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impuirment unnuully by compuaring their currying amounts
with their recoveruble umounts, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they muy be impuired. If the
recoveruble umount of intunyible ussets is estimated to be less thun its carrying umount, the carrying umount of
the intungible ussets is reduced to its recoveruble amount. An impairment loss is recognised us un expense
immediutely.

When an impuairment loss subseyuently reverses, the currying umount of the intungible assets is increused to the
revised estimute of its recoverable amount, but so that the increused carrying amount does not exceed the
cuarrying umount that would huve been determined hud no impuirment loss beenh recoynised for that intangible
assets in prior yeuars. A reversul of an impuirment loss is recoygnised us income immediutely.

Financial instruments

Finunciul ussets und finunciul liabilities ure recoyghised on the bulunce sheet when u group entity becomes u
party to the confractual provisions of the instrument. Finuncial ussets und finuncial liubilities are initially meausured
at fuir value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the ucquisition or issue of financial ussets und
financiul liubilities (other than finuncial ussets and financial liubilities at fair value through profit or loss) ure udded
to or deducted from the fuir vulue of the finunciul ussets or financial liabilities, us uppropriate, on initial recogyhnition.
Trunsuction costs directly uttributuble to the acquisition of finaunciul ussets or financiul liubilities ut fuir value
through profit or loss ure recoyghised immediutely in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s finunciul ussets are clussified into finunciul ussets ut fuir value through profit or loss, louns und receivaubles,
and uvuiluble-for-sule finunciul ussets. All regulur way purchases or sules of finunciul ussets are recoyhised und
derecoyhised on u trude dute busis. Regulur wuy purchases or sules ure purchuses or sules of financiul ussets that
reyuire delivery of ussets within the time frume estublished by regulution or convention in the murketplace. The
accounhtiny policies udopted in respect of euch cuteygory of finunciul ussets ure set out below.

Avdiluble-for-sdle financial assets

Avdilable-for-sule finunciul ussets are hon-derivutives that ure either designuted or not clussified s financiul ussets
at fair value through profit and loss, louns und receivubles or held-to-muaturity investments. At each balunce sheet
date subseyuent to initiul recognition, avuiluble-for-sule finunciul assets ure meusured at fuir value. Changes in fair
vulue ure recoyhised in eqyuity, until the finunciul usset is disposed of or is determined to be impuired, ut which
time, the cumulutive yuin or loss previously recoynised in eyuity is removed from equity und recoynised in profit or
loss. Any impuirment losses oh uvuiluble-for-sule finuncial ussets ure recoyhised in profit or loss. Impuirment losses
oh avuiluble-for-sule equity investments will not reverse in profit or loss in subseyuent periods. For uvdiluble-for-sule
debt investments, impuirment losses ure subseyuently reversed if un increuse in the fuir value of the investment
cuh be objectively reluted to un event occurring ufter the recognition of the impuirment loss.

For avdiluble-for-sule eyuity investments that do hot have u yuoted market price in an uctive murket und whose
fair value cunnot be reliubly meusured ure meusured ut cost less uny identified impuirment losses ut euch bulunce
sheet dute subseqguent to initiul recoynition. An impuirment loss is recoynised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence thut the usset is impuired. The umount of the impuirment loss is meusured us the difference between the
carrying umount of the usset und the present vulue of the estimuted future cush flows discounted ut the current
murket rate of return for a similur finuncial usset. Such impuirment losses will not reverse in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial ussets at fuir value through profit or loss
Financiul ussets ut fuir value throuygh profit or loss hus two subcateyories, including finuncial ussets held for tradiny
and those designuted ut fuir value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A finunciul usset other thun a financiul usset held for trading muy be desighuted as ut fair value throuygh profit or
loss upon initiul recoynition if:

° such desighution eliminates or sighificantly reduces g meusurement or recoyhnition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the finunciul usset forms purt of a group of finunciul ussets or finuncial liubilities or both, which is munuyged
and its performance is evaluuted on a fair value busis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
munagement or investment strategy, und informution about the grouping is provided internully on that busis;
or

° it forms purt of u contract contuining one or more embedded derivatives, und HKAS 39 “Finuncial Instruments:
Recoynition und Meusurement” permits the entire combined contract (usset or liubility) to be designuted ut
fair vulue through profit or loss.

At euch bulance sheet date subsequent to initiul recognition, financiul ussets at fuir value through profit or loss ure
meusured at fair value, with chanyges in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Louhns und receivubles

Louns und receivubles ure non-derivative finuncial ussets with fixed or determinuble puyments that aure not
guoted in un uctive market. At euch bulance sheet date subsequent to initial recoynition, louns and receivubles
(includinyg trude und other debtors, maryin uccount receivubles, louns receivuble, bunk deposits, bunk balances,
amounts due from ussociutes/related companies, debt portion of convertible notes) are curried ut amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less uny identified impairment losses. An impdairment loss is recoghised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the usset is impuired, and is meusured us the difference between
the usset’s currying umount und the present value of the estimated future cush flows discounted ut the originul
effective interest rate. Impuirment losses ure reversed in subseyuent periods when uh increuse in the usset’s
recoveruble umount cun be related objectively to un event occurring ufter the impuirment wus recoynised,
subject tfo u restriction thut the currying umount of the usset ut the date the impuirment is reversed does hot
exceed whuat the umortised cost would have beenh had the impuirment not been recognised.

Convertible notes held by the Group ure sepurately disclosed us u debt portion und conversion option embedded
in convertible notes. On initial recoynition, the debt portion represents the residuul between the fuir value of the
convertible hotes und the fuir vulue of the embedded conversion option. The debt portion is clussified as louns
and receivubles aund is subsequently meusured at umortised cost auccording to the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financiul liubilities und eqyuity instruments issued by u yroup entity dre clussified uccording to the substunce of the
contractudl arrunyements entered into und the definitions of u financiul liubility and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract thut evidences u residuul interest in the ussets of the Group ufter deductiny
dll of its liubilities. The Group’s finuncidl liubilities ure yenerdlly clussified into finuncidl liubilities ut fuir value through
profit or loss und other financial liubilities. The auccounting policies udopted in respect of financiul liubilities and
equity instruments are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Conhnvertible hotes puyuble und redeemuble convertible preference shares

Convertible notes puyuble und redeemuble convertible preference shures issued by yroup entities that contuin
both the liability and conversion option components are clussified sepurutely into respective items on initiul
recoyhnition. Conversion option will be settled by the exchunyge of u fixed umount of cash or unother financial
asset for u fixed number of the respective group entity’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fdir value of the liubility component is determined using the prevailing market interest of
similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible hotes payuble/
redeemuble convertible preference shares und the fuir value ussigned to the liubility component, representing the
cohversion option for the holder to convert the convertible notes/preference shures intfo equity, is included in
equity (convertible notes reserve/preference share reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liubility component of the convertible notes puyuble und redeemuble convertible
preference shares is curried ut umortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liubility component into ordinary shares of the respective yroup entity,
will remuin in convertible notes reserve/preference shure reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which
cuse the bualunce stated in convertible notes reserve/ preference shure reserve will be tfransferred to share premium).
Where the option remuains unexercised ut the expiry date, the bulunce stated in convertible notes reserve/preference
share reserve will be releused to retuined profits. No guin or loss is recoyhised in profit or loss upoh conversion or
expirution of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible hotes puyuble/redeemuble convertible preference
shures ure dllocuted to the liubility und equity components in proportion to the dllocution of the proceeds.
Transuction costs reluting to the eyuity component are charyed directly to equity. Transaction costs reluting to the
liubility component dre included in the currying umount of the liubility portion and uamortised over the period of
the convertible notes puyuble /redeemuble convertible preference shares using the effective interest method.

Other finuncial liabilities

Other financidl ligbilities (including bank and other borrowinys, frade and other creditors, marygin account payables,
amounts due to ussociutes/related compunies) ure subseyuently meusured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Compuny ure recorded ut the proceeds received, het of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivutives thut do not guulify for hedge uccounting ure deemed us financiul ussets held for trading or finuncial
liubilities held for tfrading. Chunges in fuir values of such derivatives ure recoynised directly in profit or loss.

Embedded derivutives

Derivutives embedded in hon-derivutive host contracts ure sepurated from the relevunt host contructs and deemed
as held for fruding when the economic churucteristics und risks of the embedded derivutives dure hot closely
reluted to those of the host contracts, und the combined contfraucts ure not meusured ut fair value through profit
or loss. In dll other circumstunces, derivutives embedded ure not sepuruted und ure uccounted for together with
the host contructs in uccordunce with appropriate standurds. Where the Group heeds to sepurute un embedded
derivutive but is unuble to meusure the embedded derivative, the entire contracts are treuted as held for frading.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition
Finunciul ussets ure derecoyhised when the rights to receive cush flows from the assets expire or, the finunciul
assets ure frunsferred und the Group hus frunsferred substuntiully dll the risks und rewards of owhership of the
financial ussets. On derecoynition of u finunciul usset, the difference between the usset’s carrying amount und

the sum of the considerution received und receivuble and the cumulative yuin or loss thut had been recoghised
directly in equity is recoygnised in profit or loss.

Financial liubilities ure derecoynised when the obligution specified in the relevunt contract is dischurged, cauncelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying umount of the financial liubility derecoynised und the consideration
puid und payduble is recoyhised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories represent finished yoods which are stated ut the lower of cost unhd net reulisuble vulue. Cost is
culculated usinyg the first-in, first-out method.

Impairment (other than intangible assets with indefinite useful lives)

At euch bulunce sheet dute, the Group reviews the currying umounts of its ussets to determine whether there is
any indicution thut those ussets have suffered un impairment loss. If the recoveruble umount of un usset is
estimuted to be less than its currying umount, the carrying umount of the usset is reduced to its recoveruble
amount. An impuirment loss is recoyhised us un expense immediutely.

Where an impuirment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the usset is increused to the revised
estimute of its recoveruble umount, but so that the increused currying umount does hot exceed the currying
amount thut would have been determined hud no impuirment loss been recoghised for the usset in prior years, A
reversdl of un impuirment loss is recoyhised us income immediutely.

Other assets

Ofther ussets represent costs incurred for the exclusive development right to u land development project in the
PRC und dlso the right to obtain the land for the development. The amounts are stated at the lower of cost and
net reulisuble value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is meusured utf the fuir value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivuble for ygoods sold und services provided in the normul course of business, net of discounts und sules
reluted fuxes.

Sules of yoods ure recoynised when gyoods ure delivered und fitle hus pussed.

Service income is recoghised when services are rendered.

Sales of securities are recoghised onh u trade-dute busis when contfracts aure executed.

Dividend income from investments is recoynhised when the Group’s right to receive payment has been estublished.
Interest income from a financial asset (excluding finuncial ussets desighated at fair value through profit or loss) is
accrued on u fime busis, by reference to the principul outstunding and ut the effective interest rate applicuble,
which is the rate thut exuctly discounts the estimuted future cush receipts through the expected life of the

finunciul usset to that asset’s net currying amount.

Rentul income under operuting leuses is recoynised on u straight-line busis over the terms of the relevunt leuses.
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4.

&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Trunsuction fee income derived from the provision of un infernet-bused electronic tradiny system is recoynised
when a fransaction is duly executed on u frade dute busis.

Precious metuls contfract trading is recoyhised us income or debit to income when the contract is closed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the finuncial statements of euch individuul group entity, fransactions in currencies other thun the
functionul currency of that entity (foreigyn currencies) ure recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primury economic environment in which the entity operutes) at the rutes of exchanges prevuiling
oh the dutes of the trunsactions. At euch bulance sheet dute, monetury items denominated in foreigh currencies
are refrunsluted at the rutes prevailing on the bulunce sheet dute. Non-monetury items curried ut fair value that
are denominuted in foreigh currencies ure retfrunslated at the rates prevuiling on the dute when the fuir value
wus determined. Non-monetary items that are meusured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency dre not
refrunsluted.

Exchunye differences urising on the settlement of monetury items, und on the franslation of monetury items, ure
recoyhised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchunye differences arising on the retranslation of
non-mohnetary items curried at fuir value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
oh the retrunslution of honh-monetury items in respect of which yains und losses ure recoyhised directly in equity,
in which cuses, the exchunye differences ure dlso recoynised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consoliduted finunciul stutements, the ussets und liabilities of the Group’s
foreigh operutions are franslated info the presentation currency of the Compuny (i.e. Hong Kony dollars) at the
rate of exchunyge prevuiling at the bulunce sheet dute, und their income and expehnses ure trunsluted at the
averuge exchunge rates for the yeuar, unless exchunyge rutes fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
cuse, the exchunge rates prevuiling at the dates of tfransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
dre recoyhised us u sepurute component of equity (the franslution reserve). Such exchunye differences ure
recoyhised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operution is disposed of.

Taxation

Income tux expense represents the sum of the tux currently puyuble und deferred tux.

The tux currently payuble is bused on tuxuble profit for the year, Tuxable profit differs from profit us reported in the
cohsoliduted income stutement becuuse it excludes items of income or expense that are tuxuble or deductible in
other yeurs and it further excludes items that are hever taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is culculuted using tux rates that have been enucted or substuntively enacted by the bulaunce sheet date.

Deferred tux is recoygnised on differences between the currying umounts of ussets und liubilities in the consoliduted
finuncial statements und the correspondiny tax base used in the computation of taxuble profit, and is accounted
for using the bulance sheet liubility method. Deferred tux liubilities ure generally recoghised for ull tuxuble temporary
differences und deferred tux ussets ure recoynised to the extent that it is probuble that tuxuble profits will be
avuiluble ayuinst which deductible temporury differences cun be utilised. Such ussets and liabilities are not
recoynised if the temporury difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recoynition (other than in u business
combination) of other ussets und liubilities in a tfransaction thut affects heither the tuxable profit nor the uccountiny
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities ure recoynised for taxuble temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
ussociutes, except where the Group is uble to control the reversul of the temporary difference and it is probuble
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeuble future.

The currying umount of deferred tux ussets is reviewed ut euch bulunce sheet dute und reduced to the extent

that it is ho longer probuble thut sufficient taxable profits will be uvdiluble to dllow dll or purt of the usset to be
recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tux is culculuted at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the lidbility is seftled or
the usset is redlised. Deferred tux is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relutes to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is ulso deult with in equity.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined conftribution retirement benefit pluns/the Mundatory Provident Fund Scheme dre charyed us
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the confributions.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs ure recoynised us und included in finunce costs in the consolidated income statement in the
period which they ure incurred.

Leasing

Leuses ure clussified us finuhce leuses whehever the terms of the leuse transfer substuntially dll the risks and
rewards of ownhership to the lessee. All other leuses ure clussified us operutinyg leuses.

The Group as lessor

Rentadl income from operuting leuses is recoghised in the consoliduted income statement on u struight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant leuse.

The Group as lessee

Rentuls payable under operating ledses ure churged to profit or loss on u straight-line busis over the terms of the
relevant leuse. Benefits received und receivuble us un incentive to enter info un operuting leuse ure recoynised
us u reduction of rentul expense over the leuse terms on u struight-line busis.

Leasehold land and building

The lund und building elements of u leuse of lund und building ure considered sepurutely for the purpose of leuse
clussificution, leusehold lund which ftitle is hot expected to puss to the lessee by the end of the leuse term is
clussified us un operating leuse unless the leuse puyments cannot be ullocuted reliably between the lund und
building elements, in which cuse, the enftire leuse is clussified us u finunce leuse.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The risks associated with the Group’s principul finuncial instruments und the policies on how to mitigute the
Group’s principal risks ure set out below.

Credit risk

The Group’s muximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterpuarties’ /debtors’ fuilure tfo perform/
dischuryge their obligations us ut 31st March, 2007 in relation to euch class of recoynhised finunciul ussets/
financiul guuruntee yiven is the carrying umount of those ussets us stuted in the consolidated bulunce sheet
and the umount of contingent liabilities disclosed in hote 51. In order fo minimise the credit risk, manugement
of the Group hus determined credit limits, credit upprovuls und other monitoring procedures to ensure thut
follow-up action is tuken to recover overdue debts. In uddition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
euch individuul trade and loun debtor und convertible notes receivuble ut euch bulunce sheet dute to
enhsure thut udeyuute impuirment losses ure made for irrecoveruble umounts. In this regurd, the directors of
the Compuny consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group hus significunt concentrution of credit risk oh louns receivuble und umount due from reluted
compunies/ussociutes, umounting to upproximutely HK$S341 million, HK$7 million and HK$500 million, respectively.
As they huve u strony-finuncial position with good puyment record in the pust, the directors of the Compuny
consider that the Group’s credit risk is minimal. Other than that, the Group hus ho sighificant concentration of
credit risk.

In addition, the credit risk on corporute guaruntee yiven to u third party/un associute is limited because
maunugement will regularly review the financiul performance of the third purty/ ussociute und reconsider the
continuaunce of the yiven guurantee reyularly.

The credit risk on liquid fund is limited becuuse the counterpurties are bunks und other finunciual institutions
with high-credit-ratings.

Market risk

Currency risk

Certuin investments held for trading und other receivubles are denominated in United Stutes dollars. Since
United Stutes dollars is linked to Hony Kony dollars, the Group does not expect uny significant movements in
USD/HKD exchunye rute. Muhuyement hus closely monitored foreigh exchunyge exposure to mitigate the
foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Fair vdlue interest rute risk

The Group’s fuir vulue interest rate risks relute primuarily to fixed rate convertible notes, fixed rute redeemuble
conhvertible preference shures und fixed rate borrowings.

Cush flow interest rate risk

All bunk deposits, umounts due from reluted compunies, louns receivuble und borrowings of the Group ure
arrunyed ut flouting rates (except preference shares, convertible notes puyuble und other louns). Munagement
hus employed u treusury team to closely monitor interest rate movement und munuye the potentidl risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedyinyg policy. However, the munagement closely monitor
inferest rute change exposure und will consider hedying sighificunt interest rate chanyge exposure should the
need urise.

Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity security price risk through the Group’s avdilable-for-sale investments, investments
held for fradiny, conversion options embedded in convertible hotes und financiul ussets desighated at fair
vulue through profit or loss. The munugement munaugyes this exposure by reviewinyg the investment portfolio
regularly.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Fair value

The fuir value of the Group’s finuncial ussets and finuncial liubilities ure determined us follows:

° the fuir value of financiul ussets and financial liubilities with standard tferms and conditions aund traded
oh active liyuid murkets ure determined with reference to quoted muarket bid prices und usk prices;

. the fdir value of other financial ussets und finuncial liubilities (excluding derivative instruments) dare
determined in uccordunce with yenherdlly accepted pricing models bused on discounted cush flow
anulysis or using prices from observuble current market transuctions; and

° the fair value of derivative instruments, are culculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
avuiluble, the fuir value of un option-bused derivutive is estimuted using option pricing model.

The directors consider that the currying umounts of the Group’s financial ussets und financial liubilities recorded
at umortised cost in the consolidated finuncial stutements upproximute their fair values.

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received und receivuble from outside customers for the yeur und is unulysed us

follows:
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Trading of listed securities 378,643 207,682
Interest income 97,741 35,492
Property investment 738 674
Trading of building materiuls and machinery 5,177 4,234
Others 10,999 4,877
493,298 252,959

Business segments

For munauyement purposes, the Group’s operutions ure currently orguhnised into five operating divisions, humely
finance, securities investment (investments held for trading), other investment, property investment, and trading of
building muteridls und muchinery. These divisions ure the busis oh which the Group reports its primary segment
information.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

6.

&

Business segments (continued)

Business segment information for the year ended 31st Murch, 2007 is presented below:

REVENUE
Externul sules
Infer-seyment sules

Total

RESULT
Segment result

Unallocuted corporute expenses

Discount onh ucquisitions

Finance costs

Net guin on disposul und dilution
of infterests in ussociutes

Share of resulfs of ussociutes

Profit before tuxution
Taxation

Profit for the yeur

Trading of

building

materials

Securities Other Property and
Finance  investment  investment  investment  machinery Unallocated Eliminations Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
53,248 378,643 44,493 738 5177 10,999 - 493,298
15,772 - 15,804 5113 - 49 (36,738) -
69,020 378,643 60,297 5,851 5177 11,048 (36,738) 493,298
24,277 123,724 22,146 8,511) 418 3,504 - 165,558
(87,223)
560,055
(39,450)
1,893
248,742
899,575
(8,695)

890,880

Inter-segment sules dre charygyed ut prevuiling market rute or, where no murket rate was avudiluble, ut terms

determined und auyreed by both puarties.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Trading of
building
materials
Securities Other Property and
Finance investment investment investment machinery  Unallocated Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
Segment ussets 358,809 717,461 1,837,036 150,421 846 371,065 3,435,638
Interests in ussociutes 1,694,047
Unullocuted corporute ussets 1,280,524
Total ussets 6,310,209
LIABILITIES
Seyment liubilities - 7,016 10,966 - - 18,074 36,056
Unullocuted corporute liubilities 1,902,093
Totdl liubilities 1,938,149
OTHER INFORMATION
Cupitul udditions - - - 143,000 6 129,203 272,209
Depreciution of property,
plunt und eyuipment - - - - 3 10,232 10,235
Releuse of prepuid leuse
payments - - - - - 2,214 2,214
Guin (loss) urising from
chunges in fuir value of:
- convertible options
embedded in
convertible notes - - (32,239 - - - (32,239)
- finauncial ussets
designuted ut
fuir value through
profit or loss - - 12,673 - - - 12,673
- investments held
for fruding - 106.842 - - - - 106,842
- investment properties - - - (7.018) - - (7.018)
Impuirment loss on
avdiluble-for-sule
investments - - 4,859 - - - 4,859
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Business segments (continued)

Business seyment informution for the year ended 31st March, 2006 (restated) is presented below:

Trading of

building

materials

Securities Other Property and
Finance  investment  investment  investment  machinery Unallocated Eliminations Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

REVENUE
External sules 32,409 207,682 3,083 674 4,234 4877 - 262,959
Inter-segment sules 4,233 - - 5,075 - - (9.308) -
Total 36,642 207,682 3,083 5,749 4,234 4,877 (9,308) 252,959
RESULT
Segment result 5,822 4,601 1,070 1,967 163 (513) - 13,110
Unallocuted corporute expenses (27,038)
Discount on ucyuisitions 2,578
Finunce costs (28,012
Net loss on disposul und dilution

of inferests in ussociutes (79,530
Share of results of ussociutes 165,328
Profit before taxation 46,436
Taxution -

Profit for the yeur 46,436

Inter-segment sales ure chaurged at murket price or, where ho murket price wus uvuiluble, ut ferms determined
and uyreed by both puarties.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Trading of
building
materials
Securities Other Property and
Finance investment investment investment machinery  Unallocated Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
Segment ussets 657,838 66,521 389,464 31,595 825 715 1,146,958
Interests in ussociutes 1,179,749
Unullocuted corporute ussets 133,993
Total ussets 2,460,700
LIABILITIES
Seyment liubilities - 25,508 16,896 48 477 870 43,799
Unullocuted corporute liubilities 384,892
Totdl liubilities 428,691
OTHER INFORMATION
Cupitul udditions - - - - 3 10,964 10,967
Depreciution of property,
plunt und eyuipment - - - - - 4,440 4,440
Releuse of prepuid leuse
payments - - - - - 2,214 2,214
Guin (loss) urising from
chunges in fuir value of:
- finuncial ussets
designuted ut
fuir value through
profit or loss - - (289) - - - (289)
- investments held
for fruding - (940) - - - - (940)
- investment properties - - - 335 - - 335

Borrowings und finance costs were clussified us unallocuted us they could not be reliubly dllocated into the
above operating divisions.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical segments

Over 90% of the revenue of the Group wus from the customers in Hony Kony; uccordingly, ho geoygruphicul
anulysis of revenue wus presented.

The followiny is aun analysis of the currying amount of segment ussets uand cupitul additions, unulysed by the
geoyruphical ureu in which the ussets are locuted:

Carrying amount

of segment assets Capital additions
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS$ 000 HK$°000 HKS 000
Hony Konhy 3,011,193 1,118,253 147,396 10,874
The PRC 346,013 2 124,704 -
Others 78,432 28,703 109 93
3,435,638 1,146,958 272,209 10,967
7. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS’000
Reversul of ullowunce for louns receivuble 7,084 -
Surplus urising from revaluation of lund und buildings - 2,682
Guin on disposul of gold bullion - 7,075
Loss on gold tradinyg contract - (7,326)
Net foreigh exchunhye yguin 15,630 -
22,714 2,331
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments puid or puyuble to euch of the hine (2006: nine) directors were us follows:

8.

(a) Directors’ emoluments

(b)

Discretionary Total
Fees Other emoluments bonus emoluments

Retirement

Salaries benefit

and other schemes

benefits contributions
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

2007
Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles 10 3.000 300 2,000 5,310
Chuu Mei Wah, Rosunnu 10 3,000 300 1,500 4,810
Chun Kwok Chuen, Augustine 10 1,838 63 1,000 2911
Chun Fut Yan 10 600 60 - 670
Cheuny Hon Kit 10 - - - 10
Chuck, Winston Culptor 200 - - - 200
Lee Kit Wuh 200 - - - 200
Shek Lui Him, Abrahum 153 - - - 153
Wony Kum Cheony, Stunley 91 - - - 91
Totul 694 8,438 723 4,500 14,355
2006

Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles 10 2,200 220 - 2,430
Chau Mei Wuh, Rosunhu 10 1,400 140 - 1,550
Chun Kwok Chuen, Augustine 10 1,838 64 - 1,912
Chun Fut Yan 10 600 60 - 670
Cheuny Hon Kit 10 - - - 10
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 5 270 27 - 302
Chuck, Winston Calptor 120 - - - 120
Lee Kit Wuh 120 - - - 120
Wonyg Kum Cheony, Stanley 120 - - - 120
Totul 415 6,308 511 - 7,234

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest puid individuuls in the Group for the yeur ended 31st March, 2007 included three directors
und two employees (2006: three directors und two employees). The emoluments of the remuining two (2006:
two) individuals were us follows:

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS 000

Sularies und other benefits 1,903 3.410
Discretionury bonus 800 200
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 57 22
2,760 3.632
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bunds:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

STATEMENTS (continued)

2007 2006
Number of Number of
employees employees
1 1

1 —

- 1

2 2

Duriny the yeur, no emoluments were puid by the Group to the five highest puid individuuls, including directors, us
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or us compensution for loss of office. In uddition, hone of the

directors has wuived uny emoluments during the yeuar,

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Impuirment losses recoyhnised in respect of:
Avuiluble-for-sule investments
Goodwill of ussociutes

10. OTHER GAINS (LOSSES), NET

Net other guins (losses) urising from changes in fair value of:
Conversion options embedded in convertible notes
Derivative financial instruments
Financiul ussets designhuted at fuir value through profit

or loss
Investments held for trading (Note)
Gold truding confracts
Investment properties

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS$ 000
4,859 -
5,155 -
10,014 -
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS$ 000
(32,239) -
(222) (460)
12,673 (289)
106,842 (940)
(303) 283
(7,018) 335
79,733 (1.071)

Note:  Amount represents unreulised guin (loss) on investments held for fradiny.
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11.

12.

13.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
Bunk borrowings wholly repuyuble within five years
Bunk borrowings not wholly repayuble within five yeurs
Convertible notes puyuble
Redeemuble convertible preference shares
Other borrowinys wholly repayuble within five yeurs
Muarygin uccount puyubles

DISCOUNT ON ACQUISITIONS

Discount on ucquisitions of:
Interests in subsidiaries
Additional interests in subsidiaries

NET GAIN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL AND DILUTION OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Guin on dilution of interests in ussociutes
Loss on dilution of interests in ussociutes
Loss on disposul of intferests in ussociutes

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS’000
2,929 834
3,105 2,482
11,681 11,938
10,947 10,952
8,990 1,406
1,798 400
39,450 28,012
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
370,923 -
189,132 2,578
560,055 2,578
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
(Restuted)
20,145 76
(18,252) (11,599)
- (68,007)
1,893 (79.,530)

For the year 2007, the guin wus due to the deemed disposul of interest in ussociutes arose from the dilution effect
of exercise of shure options, issuunce of scrip dividend, issuunce of hew shures und conversion of convertible
notes by outsiders. Whereus, the loss wus due to the deemed disposul of interest in ussociutes urose from the

dilution effect of exercise of shure options und issuunce of hew shares to outsiders.

For the yeur 2006, both the guin und loss were due to the deemed disposul of inferest in ussociutes urose from the

dilution effect of exercise of share options by outsiders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

14. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Profit before taxation has been arrived at ufter charging:
Auditor’s remunerution 7,324 1,665
Cost of inventories recoynised us un expense 3,014 2,497
Releuse of prepuid leuse puyments 2,214 2,214
Depreciution of property, plunt und equipment 10,235 4,440
Impuirment loss on infunyible ussets - 1,085
Minimum leuse puyments under operuting leuses in respect of
premises 1,697 1,416
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments (Note (a) below) 43,645 27.890
Share of tax of ussociutes (included in shure of
results of ussociutes) (14,137) 36,020
Net foreigh exchunye losses - 203
Allowunce for bud und doubtful debts 2,612 773
and affer crediting:
Dividend income received from listed securities 6,797 1,504
Guin on disposul of property, plant und equipment 960 295
Net redlised guin on investments held for trading (Note (b) below) 12,254 1,989
Rental income unhder operating leuses in respect of premises,
net of heyligible outyoinys 738 674
Notes:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
(u) Stuff costs, includiny directors” emoluments:
Sularies und other benefits 36,181 25,935
Discretionary bonus 6,627 1,139
Retirement benefit scheme contributions,
no forfeited contributions for the year
(2006: HK$68,000) 837 816
43,645 27,890
(b) Proceeds on sule of investments held for trudinyg
(included in revenhue) 373,490 205,070
Less: Cost of sules (included in cost of sules) (361,236) (203,081)
Net reudlised guin on investments held for tradinyg 12,254 1,989
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

15. TAXATION
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS’000

Current tax:
Hony Kony Profits Tux 9,920 -
Overseus tux 342 -
10,262 -
Overprovision of oversedus tux in previous yeur (5) -
Deferred tux (hote 45) (1,562) -
Tauxution uttributuble to the Group 8,695 -

Overseus tux is culculuted dut the rates prevdiling in the respective jurisdictions.

Honyg Kony Profits Tax wus calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the estimated assessuble profit for the
yeur,

For 2006, no provision for Hong Konyg Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated financial statements us the
Group hud ho ussessuble profit for the yeur.

The tuxation for the yeur cun be reconciled to the profit before tuxation per the consoliduted income statement

us follows:
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
(Restuted)
Profit before tuxation 899,575 46,436
Tux ut Hony Kony Profits Tux rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 157,426 8.126
Tux effect of expenses not deductible for tux purposes 5,836 20,279
Tux effect of income not tuxuble for tux purposes (106,590) (2.153)
Tux effect of utilisution of deductible temporary differences
previously hot recognised (5,122) (40)
Tux effect of tux losses hot recoynised 7,238 2,720
Tux effect of share of results of ussociutes (43,530) (28,932)
Effect of different tux rutes of subsidiaries operatiny
in other jurisdictions (6,558) -
Overprovision of tfuxation in previous yeurs (5) -
Taxution for the year 8,695 -

Detuils of the deferred tux are set out in hote 45.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

16. DISTRIBUTIONS

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Dividends recoynised as distributions to equity holders of
the Compuny during the yeur:
Ordinary shares:
Final dividend puid for 2006 - HK1.7 cents (2005: HK1.5 cents) per share 31,237 16,080
Interim dividend puid for 2007 - HK1.5 cents (2006: HK1.5 cents) per shure 27,954 16,121
59,191 32,201
Dividend proposed in respect of the current year:
Final dividend proposed for 2007 - HK2.0 cents
(2006: HK1.7 cents) per ordinary share 43,460 31,237

Of the dividend puid during the yedar, approximately HK$17,780,000 (2006: HK$1,446,000) wus settled in ordinary
shares under the Compuany’s scrip dividend schemes unhouhced by the Compuny oh 6th October, 2006 und 25th
January, 2007 in respect of the 2006 final and 2007 interim dividend.

The uamount of the final dividend proposed for the yeur ended 31st March, 2007, which will be payable in cash with
an option to elect scrip dividend of ordinary shares, has been calculuted by reference to 2,172,982,368 issued
ordinary shares us ut the dute of this report.

In auddition, the Bourd hus ulso recommended u bohus issue of hew ordinury shares to the holders of ordinury
shares of the Company on the busis of one hew ordinary share for every five ordinary shares held by them.

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The cdlculation of the busic and diluted edrnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company is
bused on the followiny dutu:

2007 2006
HK$’000 HKS 000
(Restuted)
Profit for the yeur uttributable to equity holders of the Compuny
for the purposes of busic eurninys per share 843,929 50,289
Effect of dilutive potentiul ordinury shares:
Adjustment of finance cost on convertible notes payable - 11,938
Adjustment of finunce cost on redeemuble convertible
preference shares 10,947 10,952
Adjustment to the share of results of ussociutes und subsididaries
based on dilution of their eurnings per share (28,587) -
Eurnings for the purposes of diluted eurninys per share 826,289 73.179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Number of shares

2007 2006
Weighted uveruge humber of ordinury shures for the
purposes of busic edrninys per share 1,848,921,433 1,142,341,794
Effect of dilutive potentiul ordinury shares:
Redeemuble convertible preference shures 271,797,404 272,085,692
Convertible notes payable - 500,270,320
Weighted uveruye number of ordinury shares for the
purposes of diluted earnings per share 2,120,718,837 1,914,697,806

The followinyg tuble summurised the impuct on busic und diluted earhings per shure attributuble to the equity
holders of the Compuny for the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2006 as a result of change in uccounting policy:

Basic Diluted

HK$ HK$

Reported figures before udjustments 0.094 0.068
Adjustments urising from the chunge in accounting policy (0.050) (0.030)
Restated 0.044 0.038
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant,
machinery Furniture Sand Construction
Land and  and office Motor and mining in
buildings equipment vehicles fixtures vessel progress Total

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
COST OR VALUATION
At 1st April, 2005 32,051 1,317 14,293 1,433 - 3.804 52,898
Translation udjustments 859 17 37 53 - - 966
Additions - 1,926 5318 3.723 - - 10,967
Disposuls - (65) (1,948) (654) - - (2,667)
Transfer - 221 - 3.583 - (3,804) -
Revdaluation increuse 2,351 - - - - - 2,351
At 31st Murch, 2006 35,261 3.416 17,700 8,138 - - 64,515
Translation udjustments 365 8 @7 20 2,286 - 2,652
Additions - 300 6,022 1,150 - - 7.472
Acyuired on acquisition

of subsidiuries - 32 1.438 1.075 119,192 - 121,737
Disposuls - (94) 6.,541) (329 - - (6,964)
Revuluution increuse 8,398 - - - - - 8.398
At 31st Murch, 2007 44,024 3,662 18,592 10,054 121,478 - 197.810
Comprising:
At cost - 3,662 18,592 10,054 121,478 - 163,786
At valuation - 2007 44,024 - - - - - 44,024
44,024 3,662 18,592 10,054 121,478 - 197.810

DEPRECIATION
At 1st April, 2005 - 973 9.908 1.257 - - 12,138
Trunslation audjustments - 16 35 54 - - 105
Provided for the yeur 525 566 1.887 1,462 - - 4,440
Eliminuted on disposuls - 63) (1,820) (595) - - (2,478)
Reversul onh revaluation (525) - - - - - (525)
At 31st March, 2006 - 1,492 10,010 2,178 - - 13,680
Translation adjustments - 6 14 19 - - 39
Provided for the yeur 545 677 2,717 1,543 4,753 - 10,235
Eliminuted on disposuls - (94) (5.091) aro - - (5,364)
Reversul on revuluution (545) - - - - - (545)
At 31st Murch, 2007 - 2,081 7.650 3.561 4,753 - 18,045
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st Murch, 2007 44,024 1,581 10,942 6,493 116,725 - 179,765
At 31st Murch, 2006 35,261 1.924 7.690 5,960 - - 50,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuea)

The ubove items of property, plant and eyuipment, other than construction in proyress ure depreciated on u
straight-line busis ut the followiny rates per unnum:

Freehold land Nil
Buildings 2% — 5%
Plant, machinery und office eyuipment 10% - 33'/3%
Motor vehicles 20% - 33'/3%
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33'/3%
Sand mining vessel 10%

At 31st March, 2007, lund und buildings of the Group were revulued by RHL Appruisul Ltd., un independent
qudlified professionul property valuer, either on un open market value bausis or on an existing use basis. RHL
Appruaisal Ltd. is not connected with the Group. This revaluution guve rise to u surplus on revaluation of upproximately
HK$8,943,000 und hud been credited to the property revaluation reserve of the Group.

The currying values of lund und buildings held by the Group us at the balunce sheet date comprised:

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS’000

Freehold properties in Canuda 31,624 22,761
Buildings in Hony Konhy 12,400 12,500
44,024 35,261

At 31st March, 2007, had the Group’s land und buildings been curried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
umortisution, the cuarrying vulue would have been dpproximately HK$35,213,000 (2006: HK$35,376,000).

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HKS 000
FAIR VALUE
At 1st April, 2005 3.525
Translation adjustments 156
Increuse in fuir value recognised in the consolidated income statement 335
At 31st March, 2006 4,016
Translation adjustments 65
Acyuired oh an ucquisition of subsidiaries 143,000
Addifions 10,358
Net decreuse in fair value recoygnhised in the consolidated income statement (7,018)

At 31st Murch, 2007 150,421

The fuir value of the Group’s investment properties ut 31st Murch, 2007 have been arrived ut on the busis of u
valuution curried out on that dute by RHL Appruisal Ltd. und B.l. Appruisals Limited, who are members of the Hony
Kony Institute of Valuers, and have uppropriate gudlificutions and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valudtion, which conforms fo the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation
Standurds on Properties, was drrived at by reference fo market evidence of fransaction prices for similar properties.

All of the Group’s property inferests held under operating leduses to earn rentals or for cupital uppreciation
purposes ure meusured using the fair value model aund ure clussified and uccounted for us investment properties.
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20.

21.

22.

&

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepuid leuse payments represent leasehold land held under medium-tferm lease in Hony Konyg and
dare unhulysed for reporting purposes us follows:

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS 000

Non-current assets 87,437 89,651
Current ussets 2,214 2,214
89,651 91,865

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intanyible ussets represent club memberships in Hony Kony und the PRC with indefinite life. The directors have
reviewed the carrying umounts of the intungible ussets und considered thut, in light of market conditions, no
impuirment loss hus been recoygnised (2006: impuirment loss of HK$1,085,000) in the consoliduted income stutement,

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Share of net ussets of ussociutes:
Listed in Hong Kony 997,900 1,172,442
Listed overseus 271,506 4,042
Unlisted 324,641 -
Goodwill (Note (u) below) - 3,265
1,594,047 1,179,749
Murket value of listed securities:
Hong Kony 1,477,663 1,359,053
Overseus 362,788 93,771
1,840,451 1,452,824
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(u) Included in the cost of interests in ussociutes is yoodwill of HK$5,155,000 (2006: HK$3,265,000) urising on ucqyuisitions und
deemed ucyuisitions.

HKS 000
Cost
At 1st April, 2005 528
Arising on ucyuisition of udditionul interest of un ussociute 2,738
Dilution of interest in un ussociute @)
At 31st March, 2006 3.265
Arising on ucyuisition or deemed ucyuisition of interests in ussociutes 1,890
At 31st March, 2007 5,155
Impuirment
At 1st April, 2005 und 31st Murch, 2006 -
Recoynised for the yeur 5,155
At 31st March, 2007 5,155
Currying vulue
At 31st March, 2007 -
At 31st March, 2006 3,265
(b) Purticulars of the Group'’s principul ussociutes us ut 31st Murch, 2007 ure us follows:
Percentage of
issued share
Place of Principal capital/registered
incorporation/ place of capital attributable
Name of associate registration operation to the Group Principal activities
%
Burcon NutruScience Cunudu Cunudu 25.46 Investment holding in compuny
Corporution enyguyed in the development of
commercidul cunolu protein
Central Town Limited Hony Kony Hony Kony 50.00 Property investment
PYI Corporution Limited Bermudu Hony Kohy 26.97 Investment holding in compunies
ehyguyed in development und
investment in ports und
infrastructure project, property
development und investment,
treusury investment,
construction, engineering und
speciulist works
PSC Corporution Ltd Sinyupore Singyupore 18.35 Supply of household consumer
products
Winyg On Truvel (Holdinys) Bermudu Hony Kohy 9.35 Business of providinyg puckuye
Limited ("Wing On Travel”) tours, fravel und other reluted
services
Hunhyzhou Zhonhyce Rubber PRC PRC 9.65 Munufacturing of fires

Compuny Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b) Purticulurs of the Group’s principul ussociutes us ut 31st Murch, 2007 are us follows: (confihnued)

All of the ubove ussociutes ure held by the Compuny indirectly. Hungzhou Zhohyce Rubber Compuny Limited is u sino-
foreign equity joint venture.

The Group held upproximutely 24.28% of the issued shure cupitul of Hunny Holdinys Limited ("Hunny”) ut 31st March, 2006.
During the yeur, the Group ucquired udditional equity interest in Hunny through dacquisition of shures from an independent
third purty which frigyered u conditionul mandutory cush offer (the “Offer”). In December 2006, pursuunt to the Offer, the
Group’s interest in Hunny haus increused to more than 50% und obtuin control on Hunny. Accordingly, Hunny becume u
subsidiury of the Group.

(c) The summurised finunciul informution in respect of the Group’s ussociutes is set out below:

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS 000

(Restuted)

Totul ussets 18,638,321 10,369,691
Totdl liubilities (11,429,865) (5,128.,224)
Net ussets 7,208,456 5,241,467
Group’s share of net ussets of ussociates 1,594,047 1,176,484
Revenue 9,827,896 9,246,233
Profit for the yeur 819,856 268,695
Group’s shure of results of ussociutes for the year 207,221 118,036

23. DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE

NOTES
Embedded
Debt conversion
portion option
HK$°000 HK$°000
Convertible notes issued by:
Maucuu Prime Properties Holdinys Limited ("MPP”)
(Note (u) below) 23,848 1,754
Wing On Truvel (Note (b) below) 250,456 44,642
274,304 46,396
Convertible options embedded in other convertible notes (hote 27) 52,070
98.466
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2007

23. DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND CONVERSION OPTION EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE
NOTES (continued)

Notes:

(W) In June 2006, the Group subscribed ut fuce vulue for 1% convertible notes issued by MPP (the *MPP Notes”) with u principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 (the “MPP Notes”) entitling the holder of the MPP Notes to convert into shares in MPP at an initial
conversion price of HKS$0.7 per shure. Unless previously converted, MPP shull redeem the MPP Notes ut the redemption
amount which is 110% of their principul umount of plus the outstundiny interest on 14th June, 2011.

(b) The convertible note is held by u subsidiury of Hunny with un uggregate principul umount of HK$300,000,000 which wus
issued by Wihy On Travel ("Wing On Travel CN”), unh ussociute of the Group, und curries interest ut 2% per unnum with an
initiul conversion price of HKS$0.79 per shure (subject to udjustments). Unless previously converted or lupsed by Wing On
Travel, Wing On Truvel shall redeem the Wing On Travel CN on 7th June, 2011 at 110% of their principul umount.

The Group clussified the debt portion of the convertible notes us louns und receivubles und the embedded
conversionh option is deemed us held for frading und recoyghised at fair value on initial recognition. The fair values
of the convertible notes on initiul recoynition ure determined by the directors of the Compuny with reference to
the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited, u firm of independent professionual valuers not
connected with the Group. The effective interest rates of the debt portion of convertible notes ranged from 8.9%
to 9.16% per anhum.

24. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The deposits were puid by a subsidiury of Hunny pursuunt to a conditional ugreement for the ucquisition of 100%
equity interest in Goul Wisdom Limited ut a consideration of HK$50,000,000. Goul Wisdom Limited is an investment
holding compuny with ifs subsidiary engaged in food und beverage operdations und reluted munugement.
Subseqyuent to the bulunce sheet dute, the ucquisition wus cuncelled us certain conditions, including the transfer
of lund use right of u piece of lund locuted in the PRC to the subsidiury of Goul Wisdom Limited, could not be
fulfiled aund the umount wus refunded in full.

25. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

The deposits which were puid by certuin subsidiuries of Hunny include un umount of HK$35,000,000 puid in 2006
pursuunt to u conditionul ugreement for the ucquisition of equity interest in un unlisted investment estublished,
and principully enguyed in port business, (the “Port Investment”) in the PRC. The ucyuisition hus not been completed
at the dute of this report us the conditions have not been fulfilled. The vendor hus pledged the shares of the Port
Investment to the Group us security fo the deposit puid. In the opinion of the directors, the land use right will be
obtduined in due course und the directors huve ussessed the recoveruble umount of the deposit with reference to
the busihess valuation report of the Port Investment and assetfs valuution report of the luand held by the Port
Investment, und considered no impuirment loss is identified.

The deposits ulso include un ugyreyute umount of upproximutely HK$110,000,000 puid us tender deposits pursuunt
to certuin conditionul ugreements for the ucqyuisition of certuin interests in wuter supply business, saund vessel
business und the exploitation right for river sund business. These puyments would be refunduble from the
counterpurties if the terms und conditions could not be concluded within one yeur from dute of the payments.
Subseyuent to the bulunce sheet date, the ugreements relating to the ucquisition of wuter supply business und
sund vessel business were completed. The directors of Hanhny ure of the view that is impracticuble to disclose the
financial information of the water supply und sund vessel business us ut the date of this report since the ussessment
of the financiul information is still in progress.

Subseyuent to the bulunce sheet dute, Hunny entered intfo condifionul ugreement to ucyuire the exploitution
right for river sand business. The ucyuisition hus not been completed us at the dute of this report.

26. PAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN PROPERTIES

The umount represents un initiul umount of RMB58,000,000 (eyuivulent to HK$58,830,000) puid by certuin subsidiuries
of Hunny pursuunt to u conditionul ugreement for the ucquisition of interest in certain properties, comprising u
parcel of lund situuted in Shunghdi, the 24-storey building erected thereon und two levels of underground carparks,

for un uyyreyute considerution of RMB450,000,000 (eyuivulent to HK$424,528,000).
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26. PAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN PROPERTIES (continued)

As the conditions stated in the ugreement cannot be fulfilled by the vendor, the subsidiaries of Hunhy commenced
legal proceedinygs uygainst the vendor. On 22nd Juhe, 2006, the People’s High Court of Shanghui City ruled the
cuse in fuvour of the subsidiaries of Hahny and demanded the vendor to continue fulfilling its obligations under
the ugreement.

On 12th July, 2007, un independent third purty maude un letter of offer to ucyuire the project from Hunny und
mude u deposit of RMB70,000,000 (eyuivulent to HK$70,000,000) into un escrow uccount held under the People’s
High Court of Shunyghui City us protection to Hunny. The directors of Hunny consulted with Hanny’s legul counsel
und were of the view that the currying amount of deposit wus not less than its recoverable aumount und considered
no impuirment loss is identified.

27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Avdiluble-for-sule investments:
Listed investments, ut fuir value:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kony 257,552 69,990
— Equity securities listed elsewhere 28,315 13,740
Unlisted debt securities, at fuir value (Note (u) below) 704,067 -
989,934 83,730
Unlisted equity securities, at cost less impuirment
(Note (b) below) 43,889 -
1,033,823 83,730

During the year, an impuirment loss of HK$4,859,000 in respect of avdiluble-for-sale investments was directly
recoyhised in the consoliduted income statement.

Notes:

(g) At 31st Murch, 2007, the debt securities which were held by certuin subsidiuries of Hunny include the debt portion of five
convertible hotes with the followiny terms:

Principal Coupon
Issuer amount Maturity date rate Redemption amount
HKS 000 %
MPP 330,000 10th Auygust, 2010 - 110% of the principul umount
MPP 270,000 14th June, 2011 1.00 110% of the principul umount
See Corporution Limited 170,000 9th August, 2010 - 110% of the principul umount
("See Corp”)
Wo Kee Honyg (Holdinys) 30,000 5th September, 2008 7.25 100% of the principul umount
Limited
Asiu Stundurd Internutionul 19.000 14th May, 2009 4.00 100% of the principul umount
Limited
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27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(u) At 31st Murch, 2007, the debt securities which were held by certuin subsidiuries of Huhny include the debt portion of five
convertible notes with the followiny terms: (continued)

All these compunies ure public limited compunies with their shares listed on the Hony Kony Stock Exchuhye.
The fuir values of the corresponding conversion option element were upproximutely HK$52,070,000 (hote 23).
The effective interest rute for the unlisted debt securities is runging from 8.3% to 10% per annum.

(b) Amount muinly represents 9.67% interests in Apex Quulity Group Limited ("Apex”). Apex is incorporuted in the British Virgin
Islands unhd enguyged in hotel und leisure reluted business. They dure meusured ut cost less impuirment ut euch balunce
sheet dute becuuse the runge of reusonuble fuir value estimute is so sighificunt thut the directors of the Compuny are of
the opinion thut their fuir value cunnot be meusured reliubly.

28. OTHER ASSETS

The other ussets represent payments mude by certuin subsidiaries of Hunny to the PRC government for the rights
to obtuin the lund und the exclusive development right pertaining to the lund development project of 0D O 0O 0O O
00000 locutedin Lonyg Shan Development Area, Doumen District, Zhuhuai City. The subsidiaries of Hunny ure
dlso entitled to sell the rights to other investors ut a considerution to be agreed aumony themselves. The manuygement
hus ussessed the currying value of the other ussets with reference to the valuution performed by un independent
valuer on un opeh Murket value busis und considers thut ho impuirment is identified.

29. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in debtors, deposits und prepuyments ure trude debtors of upproximautely HK$13,892,000 (2006:
HK$11,747,000) und their uged unulysis ut the bulunce sheet dute is us follows:

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000

Trade debtors
0-30 duys 7,018 11,587
31-60 duys 28 129
61-90 days 1 28
Over 90 duys 6,845 3
13,892 11,747

Trude debtors urise from property investment business ure payuble monthly in udvunce and the credit terms
grunted by the Group to other frade debtors hormully range from 30 days to 90 duys.
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29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

3

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continuea)

Included in other receivubles is considerution receivables in connection with the disposal of the business of
trading of computer reluted products under the trade hume of “Memorex®” by Hanny on 19th January, 2006 of
US$33,000,000 (eyuivalent to HK$256,047,000) held under an escrow account. On 29th March, 2007, Hanny received
u notice of cluim (the “Claim”) from Imution Corp. (“Imution”) in connection with the ullegyed breuches of
wdarranties as set out in the disposal ugreement entered into between Hanny and Imation on 19th Junuary, 2006
(the “Disposul Agreement”). The Clauim demunded the withhold of the amount of HK$256,047,000 (US$33,000,000)
in the escrow uccount pendiny the resolution of the Cluim. Hunny hus objected to the Claim on the yrounds that
the allegutions in the Cluim ure hot supported und thut Imation fuiled to indicute what investigution Imution had
maude of the ullegutions. Hunny usserted that bused upon the yenerdlity of the Cluim, it uppeurs to huve been
disclosed in the disclosure schedules to the Disposul Agreement, and therefore, not properly the subject of un
indemnification claim.

Hanny is how in discussions with Imation concerning the Claim und possible resolution of the dispute. The directors
of Hunny ure of the opinion, ufter seekiny legul udvice that the Claim is ill-founded und there were no breuch of
uny wurrunties made by Hunny in the Disposul Agreement. No impuirment is considered nhecessury to muke
ayuinst the receivubles.

MARGIN ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

The maryin uccount receivubles/puyubles curry variuble interest rutes ranging from 0.5% to 5.138% (2006: 0.01% to
4%) per annum.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

In March 2007, Hunny entered into conditionul ugreements to ucquire 10,563,715 shares of Guunyzhou Globul
Telecom Inc., a compuny whose shures were subseyuently listed on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Bourd of United
Stutes of Americu on 17th Muy, 2007, for u considerution of HK$146,000,000 which is bused on the subscription
price under the initiul public offer of Guunyzhou Globul Telecom Inc.. Anh umount of HK$73,289,000 wus puid us
deposit upon entering the ugreements. The fransuctions were completed subseguent to 31st Murch, 2007.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The umounts ure unsecured, repuyuble on demund und hon-interest beuriny, except for un umount of
upproximautely HK$88,000,000 (2006: HK$169,000,000) which beurs interest ut the best lendiny rute of Hony Kony
dollurs quoted by The Honykony und Shanhghui Bunking Corporation Limited (the "Best Lendiny Rute”) plus 2% per
annhum which runyge from 9.75% to 10% per unnum.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Associutes of Chinu Strateyic Holdihgs Limited - 135,548
Associutes of Hunny - 111,244
MPP 1,055 570
See Corp 6,207 -
7,262 247,362

The Group unhd the ubove reluted compunies huve common directors who have sighificant influence in the
above compunies. MPP und See Corp dre the investees of the Group.

The umounts ure unsecured, uyged within one yeur, repuyuble within one yedr und hon-interest beuriny, except

for an amount of upproximately HK$5,742,000 (2006: HK$239,000,000) which beurs interest at 9.75% to 10% per
annhum.
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34. LOANS RECEIVABLE

35.

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS’000

Secured (Note (a) below) 308,549 21,400
Unsecured (Note (b) below) 33,898 189,373
342,447 210,773

Less: Impuirment loss recoghised (1,898) (5,373)
340,549 205,400

Notes:

(C))

()

As 31st Murch, 2007, the umount were secured by the (i) shures in lund/property holding compunies; (ii) shares in certuin
subsidiuries enguged in garment munufacturing: und (i) listed securities.

At 31st March, 2006, the umount were secured by the motor vehicle und interest in certuin private compunies with ugyregute
net usset vulue of HK$173,900,000 und the umounts were fully repuid during the yeur.

The louns receivubles curry interest ut Best Lending Rute plus 2% to 3% per unnum (2006: Best Lending Rute plus 2% to 3% per
anhum) which range from 9.75% to 11% per unnum und repuyuble within one yeur (2006: Within one yeuar).

The umounts ure unsecured, curries interest ut Best Lending Rute plus 2% to 3% per unhum (2006: Best Lendiny Rute to 3%
fper unnum) which ranye from 9.75% to 11% per ahnum und repuyuble within ohe year from the bulunce sheet dute (2006:
Within ohe yeur).

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS’000

Equity linked notes (Note (u) below) 24,689 82,744
Convertible notes (Note (b) below) 122,549 -
147,238 82,744

Notes:

(@

(b)

The eyuity linked hotes represent notes with inferest puyments bused on the unnual return of u portfolio of underlying usset-
bucked securities which huve an early redemption option. Euch equity linked note held by the Group contuins one or more
embedded derivutives. Hence, the Group desighuted the entire equity linked hotes us financiul ussets at fuir value through
fprofit or loss.

The umounts represent two convertible notes with principul umount of HK$50,000,000 from Mei Ah Enterprises Group Limited
und HK$50,000,000 from Golden Hurvest Entertuinment (Holdinys) Limited. The Group designuted them us finunciul ussets ut
fuir value through profit or loss. During the yeur, u guin of HK$12,521,000 urisinyg from chunges in fuir vulue wus recognised in
the consoliduted income stutement.
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36. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING (OTHER THAN DERIVATIVES)

2007 2006
HK$’000 HKS 000

Listed equity securities, ut fuir value:
- in Hony Kony 594,645 42,254
— elsewhere 32,004 13,476
626,649 55,730

37. SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES

The short ferm bunk deposits and bunk bulunces curry variuble interest rates ranging from 2.75% to 5.1% (2006:
0.95% to 4.6%) per unnum.

38. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Included in creditors und uccrued expenses ure frude puyubles of upproximutely HK$18,396,000 (2006: HKS$758,000)
and their uged unulysis ut the balunce sheet dute is us follows:

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Trade creditors
0 - 30 duys 18,320 730
31 - 60 duys 47 22
61 - 90 duys - 4
Over 90 duys 29 2
18,396 758
39. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES
The umounts ure unsecured, hoh-interest beauring und repuyuble on demaund.
40. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Derivative financial liabilities
Equity accumulator - 285
Futures 222 175
222 460

The eqyuity uccumulutor hud originul maturity on 20th March, 2007 but wus knocked out on 26th June, 2006
pursuunt fo its terms. The futures represent the Group’s investment in un overseus stock market index with maturity
on 7th June, 2007 (2006: 30th June, 2006).
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41. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

The movement of the liubility component of the redeemuble convertible preference shures for the current und
prior years is set out below:

HKS’000
At 1st April, 2005 286,537
Finance cost 10,952
Interest puid in the form of u dividend (10,678)
At 31st March, 2006 showh under nonh-current liabilities 286,811
Finance cost 10,947
Interest puid in the form of u dividend (10,679)
Conversion on 6th December, 2006 (942)
At 31st March, 2007 shown under current liubilities 286,137
Number of redeemuble convertible preference shares issued und fully paid is us follows:

Number

of shares

At Tst April, 2005 und 2006 266,952,000
Conversion on 6th December, 2006 (890,000)

At 31st Murch, 2007 266,062,000

The redeemuble convertible preference shares are listed und will be redeemed on 3rd November, 2007 (onh the
next followiny business day if it is not u business duy), with u redemption value of HK$1.06 per preference share,
uhless they dre previously converted, redeemed or purchused and cuncelled. The redeemauble convertible
preference shures runk in priority fo the ordinury shares in the Compuny us to dividends und return of cupitul und
are convertible into ordinary shares of the Compuny ut the option of the holders ut any time in uccordunce with
the rights and restrictions us set out in the special resolution of the Compuany puss on 13th October, 2004 for the
redeemauble convertible preference shares. However, redeemuble convertible preference shares are subject to
compulsory conversion ut the option of the Compuny in uny of the followiny cuses:

- the closiny price of the ordinary shures in the Compuny on the Hony Kony Stock Exchunyge is 125% or more of
the conversion price of HK$1.04, subject to udjustments, for twenty consecutive trading duays; or

- there are less than 50,000,000 redeemauble convertible preference shares in issue.

The redeemuble convertible preference shures contuin two components: liubility aund eqyuity elements. The equity
element is presented in eqyuity heuding “preference share reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liubility
componhent is 3.88% per unhum. The fuir value of the embedded derivuative of the redeemuble convertible is
cohsidered to be negligible.

On 6th December, 2006, 907,115 ordinury shares of HKS0.10 euch of the Compuny were issued upon conversion of
890,000 redeemuble convertible preference shares of HKS0.10 each at the conversion price of HK$1.04 per share.
The ordinury shares issued by the Compuny ranked puri pussu with the then existing ordinary shares of the
Compuny in dll respects.
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42. BORROWINGS

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Borrowinys compirise:
Bunk louns 148,450 62,550
Other louns 510,000 -
658,450 62,550
Andlysed us:
Secured 658,450 62,550
Unsecured - -
658,450 62,550
The borrowinygs ure repuyuble us follows:
Within one year or on demund 517,100 2,450
From one to two years 9,890 2,450
From two to three yeaurs 9,890 2,450
From three to four yeuars 9,890 2,450
From four to five yeurs 12,690 5,250
More thun five years 98,990 47,500
658,450 62,550
Less: Amount due within one yeur or on demund shown
under current liabilities (517,100) (2,450)
Amount due ufter one year 141,350 60,100

The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate borrowinygs und the contractual muturity dutes are as follows:

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Fixed-rate borrowings which due within one yeur 510,000 -

The Group hus variable-rate borrowings which carry inferest at Hong Kony Interbunk Offer Rute or Canadian
prime rate plus u fixed percentuye.

The raunges of effective interest rates (which are dlso equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s variable
rate borrowings are 4.715% to 10% (2006: 1.184% to 4.965%) per anhnum. The interest rate of the Group’s fixed-rate

borrowinys are 15% (2006: nil) per annum.

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in functional currency of the relevant group entities.
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43. BANK OVERDRAFTS

Bunk overdrufts curry interest ut market rutes which range from 6% to 8% (2006: 8%).

44. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

45.

2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Liability component:

At the beyinniny of the yeur - 162,628
On ucyuisition of subsidiuries 545,299 -
Interest churye 11,681 11,938
Interest puid - (10,085)
Conversion - (164,481)
At the end of the yeur 556,980 -

At 31st March, 2007, the umount represents the convertible notes issued by Hunny (the “Hanny Bonds”) which
carry interest at 2% per unnum and will be matured in June 2011. The Hunny Bonds ure denominuted in Hohy Konhy
dollurs, with conversion price of HK$9 per shure (subject to unti-dilutive udjustments). The effective interest rute of
the liubility component is 6.87% per unnum to the Group. Unless previously converted by the holders of the Hunhny
Bonds, the Hunny Bonds will be redeemed on the date of maturity ut the principul amount of the Hanhny Bonds
then outfstunding. The ubove umount of HK$545,299,000 us ucqyuired through ucqyuisition of subsidiuries is ufter
elimination of the portion of Hunny Bonds held by the Group (Note 48).

The umount in 2006 represented convertible notes issued by the Compauny on 3rd Murch, 2003 und they were fully
conhverted during the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2006.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES)

The followinyg table summurises the mujor deferred tux lidbilities (ussets) recoyhised und movements thereon
duriny the current and prior yeurs:

Accelerated

tax Revaluation Tax

depreciation of properties losses Total

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st April, 2005 865 48 (865) 48
Churyge (credit) to the consoliduted

income statement 298 - (298) -

Churyge to eyuity - 51 - 51

At 31st March, 2006 1,163 99 (1,163) 99
Charyge (credit) to the consoliduted

income statement 21 (1,288) (295) (1,562)

Churye to equity - 2,746 - 2,746

Arising on ucyquisition of subsidiuries 21,874 15,548 (1,078) 36,344

At 31st March, 2007 23,058 17,105 (2,536) 37,627
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45. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) (continued)
The followiny is the unalysis of the deferred tux bulunces for finunciul reporting purposes:

2007 2006

HK$°000 HK$ 000

Deferred tux ussets 1,464 -
Deferred tux liubilities (39,091) (G
(37,627) (C)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated bulance sheet, the ubove deferred tax ussets and liabilities
have been offset.

At the bulunce sheet dute, the Group hus unused tux losses of upproximutely HK$495,251,000 (2006: HKS$475,314,000)
avuilable for offset uguinst future profits. A deferred tax usset hus been recoyhised in respect of aupproximately
HK$14,491,000 (2006: HKS$6,645,000) of such losses. No deferred tux usset in respect of the remuining tux losses of
upproximutely HK$480,760,000 (2006: HK$468,669,000) hus been recoynised due to the unpredictubility of future
profit streams. Tax losses cun be curried forward indefinitely.

46. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of
shares Value
HK$°000
Ordinary shares of HKS0.10 euch
Authorised:
At 1st April, 2005, 31st March, 2006 und 31st March, 2007 3.000,000,000 300,000
Issued und fully puid:
At 1st April, 2005 1,072,008,541 107,201
Conversion of convertible notes (Note (a) below) 548,333,330 54,834
Issue of shares (Notes (b) & (c) below) 217,153,274 21,715
At 31st Murch, 2006 1.837.,495,145 183,750
Conversion of redeemuble convertible preference shures
(Note (d) below) 907.115 90
Issue of shures (Note (e) below) 34,580,108 3,458
At 31st March, 2007 1,872,982,368 187,298
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46.

47.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(u) Duriny the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2006, 548,333,330 ordinury shures of the Compuny of HKS$0.10 euch were issued upon
conversion of the convertible notes ut the conversion price of HK$0.30 per ordinury share. Detuils ure us follows:

No. of ordinary

Amount of convertible shares issued

Date of conversion notes being converted upon conversion
HKS’000

24th Februury, 2006 39,900 133,000,000

27th Februury, 2006 6,900 23,000,000

28th Februury, 2006 33,900 112,999,998

2nd Murch, 2006 83,800 279,333,332

164,500 548,333,330

(b) On 3rd November, 2005, 2,753,274 ordinury shures of the Compuny of HK$0.10 euch were issued in the form of u scrip
dividend.

(c) On 24th February, 2006, 214,400,000 ordinary shures of the Compuny of HK$0.10 euch were issued ut un issuunce price of
HK$0.72 ordinary share.

(d) On 6th December, 2006, 907,115 ordinury shures of the Compuny of HK$0.10 euch were issued upon the conversion of
890,000 redeemuble convertible preference shures of HKS0.10 euch ut the conversion price of HK$1.04 per ordinury shure.,

(e) 25,208,848 und 9,371,260 ordinury shares of the Compuny of HKS0.10 euch were issued in the form of u scrip dividend on
3rd November, 2006 und 27th February, 2007, respectively.

The ordinary shares issued by the Compuahny ranked pari pussu with the then existing ordinary shares of the
Compuny in dll respects.

SHARE OPTIONS
(a) Share options of the Company

The Compuny udopted u share option scheme (the “ITC Scheme”) on 16th January, 2002 (the “Adoption
Dute”) for the purpose of providing incentive or rewurd to eligible persons for their contribution to, und
continuiny efforts to promote the interests of, the Compuny. The bourd of directors of the Compuny may in its
ubsolute discretfion, subject to the terms of the ITC Scheme, grunt options to uny employees (includiny
directors) of the Compuny und its subsidiuries to subscribe for ordinury shares of the Compuny.

At the time of udoption by the Company of the ITC Scheme, the uygyreygyate number of ordinuary shares which
may be issued upoh the exercise of dll options to be yranted under the ITC Scheme und any other share
option scheme(s) udopted by the Company must hot exceed 10% of the totul nhumber of issued ordinary
shures of the Compuny us ut the dute of shareholders” approvul of the ITC Scheme. By ordinury resolution
pussed onh 15th Muy, 2006 relating fo the refreshing of the scheme limit on grant of options under the ITC
Scheme und uny other share option scheme(s) of the Compuny, the scheme limit on grunt of options wus
refreshed. As u result, the totul number of ordinury shures avuiluble for issue under the ITC Scheme is 183,749,514,
representing upproximately 8.46% of the agyreygyate number of issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
the date of this report. Notwithstunding the foregoing, the muximum nhumber of ordinury shares which may
be issued upon exercise of ull outstunding options yranted und yet to be exercised under the ITC Scheme
und uny other shure option scheme(s) of the Compuny must not, in uggreyute, exceed 30% of the totul
number of issued ordinury shares of the Compuny from time to time.
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47. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(a) Share options of the Company (continued)

Unless upproved by the shureholders of the Compuany in yenerdl meeting, the totul number of ordinary shares
of the Compuny issued und to be issued upoh exercise of the options gyrunted und to be ygrunted (whether
exercised, cauncelled or outstanding) under the ITC Scheme and uny other share option scheme(s) of the
Compuny to uny eligible person in any 12-month period expiring on the dute of offer shull not exceed 1% of
the totul number of the Compuny’s ordinury shares in issue us ut the dute of yrunt. Optionhs yranted to u
substantial shareholder und/or un independent hon-executive director of the Compuny or any of their
respective ussociutes (us defined in the Listing Rules) in auny 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the totul
number of shures of the Compuny in issue und huve un uyyreyute vulue exceediny HKS5 million must be
approved by the shareholders of the Compuny in generul meeting in advance.

The period within which the options may be exercised will be determined by the directors of the Compuny ut
the time of yrunt. This period must expire in uny event not later than the last day of the ten yeur period ufter
the Adoption Dute. The ITC Scheme does hot provide for uny minimum period for which an option must be
held before it cun be exercised. Options Muy be yrunted ut un initiul payment of HKS1.00 for euch ucceptunce
of grant of option(s). The directors of the Compuny shull specify u dute, beiny u date not luter than 30 duys
after (i) the dute on which the offer of the options is issued, or (ii) the date on which the conditions for the
offer are satisfied, by which the eligible person must uccept the offer or be deemed to huve declined it.

The exercise price of the options will be determined by the directors of the Compuny (subject to udjustments
us provided in the rules of the ITC Scheme) which shall be ut leust the highest of (i) the nominul value of the
ordinary shares of the Compuany; (i) the closiny price of the ordinury shares of the Compuny us stated in the
Hony Kony Stock Exchange’s duily yuotations sheet on the date of the offer, which must be u business duay;
and (iii) the uveruye of the closinyg prices of the ordinary shures of the Compuny us stuted in the Hohy Kony
Stock Exchunye’s duily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the dute of the
offer.

The ITC Scheme shull be vulid und effective for a period of tenh yeurs commencinyg ufter the Adoption Dute,
after which period ho further options shull be granted.

As ut 31st Murch, 2007 and 2006, there were no outstandiny shure options yranted by the Company pursuunt
to the ITC Scheme. No shure options were grunted, exercised, cuncelled or lupsed during the year and prior
yeuar,
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47. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) Share options of Trasy Gold Ex Limited (“Trasy”)

0}

(i

Pre-IPO Share Option Plun of Trasy

Trasy, a subsidiary of the Compuny, adopted u pre-IPO share option plun (the “Trasy Pre-IPO Plan”) on 6th
November, 2000. Pursuant to the Trusy Pre-IPO Plan, the bourd of directors of Trasy could, ut its discretion,
grunt options to uny full-time employees or executives of Trusy or its former ultimate holding company
und their subsidiaries on or before 29th November, 2000 which entitle them to subscribe for shures
representing up to u maximum of 10% of the shares of Trasy in issue on the dute of listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Hong Kohy Stock Exchunyge on 7th December, 2000.

Detduils of the shure options granted under the Trasy Pre-IPO Plun are us follows:

Number of shares of Trasy
to be issued upon exercise of the share options

Exercise Balance  Cancelled Lapsed Balance  Cancelled Lapsed Balance

price as at during during as at during during as at

Grantees Date of grant per share 1.4.2005 the year the year  31.3.2006 the year the year  31.3.2007
HKS

Directors of Trasy 29th November, 2000 021 44,152,000  (44,152,000) - - - - -

Others 29th November, 2000 021 16,580,000  (15,068,000)  (1,512,000) - - - -

Totul 60,732,000  (59,220,000)  (1,512,000) - - - -

All the ubove options huve u duration of ten yeurs from the dute of yrunt.

No shure options were exercised under the Trusy Pre-IPO Plan during the yeur and prior yeur.

Share Option Scheme of Trasy

Trusy udopted u hew share option scheme (the “Trasy Scheme”) on 30th April, 2002. The purpose of the
Trasy Scheme is to enuble the board of Trasy, ut its discretion, grant options to uny employees or proposed
employees or executives, including executive directors, of Trusy, the controlling compuny and of their
respective subsidiaries, hon-executive directors of Trusy, any confrolling compuny and their respective
subsidiaries, any suppliers, udviser, consultunt, contractor, customers, person or entity that provides research,
development or other technoloyicul support to Trasy and its subsidiaries (the “Trasy Group”) or uny
shareholders of uny members of the Trasy Group or uny investor entity us incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Trasy Group.

The totul number of shures muy be issued upon exercise of ull options to be yranted under the Trusy
Scheme must not, in ugyreyute, exceed 10% of the issued shure capital of Trusy us at the dute of
udoption of the Trasy Scheme, unless upprovul by its shareholders hus been obtuined, and which must
not in uggreyute exceed 30% of the shures in issue from time o time. The muximum entitlement of euch
participunt under the Trasy Scheme in uny 12-month period up to the dute of yrunt shall hot exceed 1%
of shares in issue us at the dute of yrant.

An option mMuy be uccepted by u proposed yruntee within 7 days from the date of the offer of gyrant of
the option upon puyment of HK$1.00 to Trusy by way of considerution for the grunt. There is ho minimum
period for which un option must be held before it can be exercised. An option may be exercised in
uccordunce with the terms of the Trasy Scheme dt any time ufter the dute upon which the option is
deemed to be yrunted und uccepted and prior to the expiry of ten years from that date.
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47. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) Share options of Trasy Gold Ex Limited (“Trasy”) (continued)
(i) Share Option Scheme of Trusy (continued)

The exercise price in respect of uny particulur option yrunted under the Trusy Scheme shall be determined
by the bourd of directors of Trasy und will hot be less than the highest of (u) the closing price of the
shares us stuted in the Hony Kony Stock Exchanhge’s duily yuotutions sheet on the dute of grant; (b) the
averuye of the closing prices of the shures us stuted in the Hony Kony Stock Exchange’s duily yuotutions
sheets for the five business duys immediutely preceding the dute of grunt; und (c) the hominul vulue of
u share.

The Trasy Scheme shull be vulid und effective for u period of 10 yeurs from the dute of its adoption.

No share options were granted by Trusy unhder the Trusy Scheme since the udoption dute of the Trusy
Scheme during the yeur and the prior yeur. Subseyuent to the yeur end, Trasy yrunted shure options to
eligible puarticipants. As at 11th June, 2007, the date of cessution of Trusy as u subsidiary of the Compuny,
Trasy had 5,300,000 outstunding share options.

(c) Share options of Hanny

Hanny’s share option scheme wus udopted on 21st August, 2001 (the "2001 Shure Option Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to the employees of Hunny und its subsidiuries (the "Hunny Group”).
Under the 2001 Shure Option Scheme, the bourd of directors of Hunny muy grunt options to eligible employees
including the directors (but excluding independent hon-executive directors) of Hunny und the directors of
any of the subsidiuries of Hunny to subscribe for shares in Hunny.

Pursuant to u resolution pussed ut u speciul generul meeting of Hunny on 17th March, 2003, Hunny haus
terminuted the 2001 Share Option Scheme und udopted u hew shure option scheme (the "2003 Shure Option
Scheme”). Under the 2003 Shure Option Scheme, the bourd of directors of Hunny may ygrunt options to
directors und employees of the Hunny Group und uny udvisors, consultunts, distributors, contructors, suppliers,
uyents, customers, business puarthers, joint venture business purthers, promoters und service providers of uny
members of the Hunny Group who the bourd of directors of Hunnhy considers have contributed or will contribute
or cun contribute to the Hunny Group. The purpose of the 2003 Shure Option Scheme is to provide puarticipunts
with the opportunity to ucquire proprietary interests in the Hanny Group und to encouruyge purticipunts to
work towards enhancing the vulue of the Hunny Group und its shares for the benefits of the Hunny Group und
its shareholders us g whole.

Subject to the condition thut the totul humber of shures which may be issued upon the exercise of dll
outstundinyg options grunted und to be exercised under the 2003 Shure Option Scheme und any other
schemes of Hunny must not exceed 30% of the shares of Hanny in issue from time to time, the totaul humber of
shares in respect of which options muy be yrunted under the 2003 Shure Option Scheme, when uyyreyuted
with uny shares subject to uny other schemes, is hot permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of Hunny in issue
oh the dute of upprovul und udoption of the 2003 Shure Option Scheme.

Under the 2003 Shure Option Scheme, the options which muy be ygyranted to uny individudl in uny one yeur
dare not permitted to exceed 1% of the shures of Hunny in issue, without prior upprovul from Hanny’s
shareholders. Options grunted to substuntial shureholders or indepenhdent hon-executive directors in excess
0.1% of Hunny's shure cupitul or with u vulue in excess of HKS5 million must be upproved in udvunce by
Hanhny's shareholders.

No options were outstunding under the 2001 Shure Option Scheme und the 2003 Shure Option Scheme us ut
31st Murch, 2007.
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47. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c) Share options of Hanny (continued)

Options yrunted must be tuken up within 28 duys from the dute of yrunt, upon puyment of HKS1 per yrunt,
Options muy be exercised ut uny time from the date on which the option is uccepted to the tenth anniversary
of the dute of ygrunt. The exercise price is determined by the directors of Hunny, and will not be less than the
higher of the closing price of Hunnhy shares on the date of grant or the averuge closing price of the shures for
the five business duys immediately preceding the dute of grant or the hominal value of the share of Hanny.

The followiny tubles disclose detuils of Hanny's share options held by employees (including directors) of
Hanny and movements in such holdings during the yeurs ended 31st March, 2006 and 31st Muarch, 2007:

2003 Share Option Scheme

Number of share options

Balance

Exercise Balance Exercised Lapsed as at

price as at during during 31.3.2006 and

Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.4.2005 the year the year 31.3.2007

HK$
Directors of 23.2.2004 to 22.2.2006 3.415 3,200,000 (3,200,000) - -
the Compuny

23.2.2004

Employees 23.2.2004 to 22.2.2006 3.415 9,600,000 (6,800,000) (2,800,000) -
23.2.2004

12,800,000 (10,000,000) (2,800,000) -

During the yeurs ended 31st Murch, 2006 und 31st Murch, 2007, movements of the share options ure us
follows:

Number of share options

Balance

Exercise as at Exercised Lapsed Balance

price 1.4.2005 and during during as at

Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.4.2006 the year the year 31.3.2007

HK$
Directors of 31.8.2001 to 30.8.2006 2.9888 5,750,000 - (5,750,000) -
the Compuny

31.8.2001

Employees 31.8.2001 to 30.8.2006 2.9888 3,250,000  (3,250,000) - -
31.8.2001

9,000,000  (3.250,000) (5,750,000) -
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48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

As stated in hote 22, the Group ucyuired un udditionul equity interest in Hunny during the yeur. Hunny und its
subsidiuries ure enyuyed in the business of securities truding, property investment and frading, holding of vessels
for sund mininy und strategic investments. Hunny's shares are listed on the Hohy Kohy Stock Exchunye und it
becume u subsidiary of the Compuny in December, 2006. The acquisition had been accounted for using the
purchuse method. The umounts of ussets und liubilities ucyuired by the Group, und the discount on ucquisition

arising, during the yeur ure us follows:

Hanny’s carrying

amount before Fair
combination Adjustments value
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED:
Property, plant and equipment 121,737 - 121,737
Investment properties 143,000 - 143,000
Interests in ussociutes 811,988 (16,975) 795,013
Conversion option embedded ih convertible notes 116,303 - 116,303
Debt portion of convertible nhotes 239,787 9,007 248,794
Avuiluble-for-sule investments 967,994 N 967,994
Deposits puid for ucqyuisition of subsidiaries 50,000 - 50,000
Deposits puid for ucquisition of lony-term investments 190,175 - 190,175
Payments for ucquisition of interest in properties 57,546 - 57,546
Intanyible ussets 3.500 - 3,500
Inventories 32 - 32
Other ussets 229,288 - 229,288
Debtors, deposits und prepuyments 335,820 - 335,820
Amount due from un ussociute 60,453 - 60,453
Investments held for trading 466,331 = 466,331
Finunciul ussets designuted at fuir value through profit or loss 106,961 - 106,961
Louns receivuble 442,665 - 442,665
Muargin uccount receivubles 2,501 N 2,501
Amount due from reluted compunies 30,000 - 30,000
Tux recoveruble 1,095 - 1,095
Short them bunk deposits, bunk bulunces und cush 55,348 N 55,348
Creditors und uccrued expense (139,236) - (139.,236)
Amounts due to ussociutes (138) - (138)
Margin account puyubles (6,424) - (6,424)
Amounts due to reluted compunies (190,227) - (190,227)
Amount due to ultimute holding compuny (169,757) - (169,757)
Tux puyuble (53,248) - (53,248)
Borrowinys (140,675) - (140,675)
Obligution under u finunce leuse am - aimn
Convertible notes puyuble (644,556) 17,652 (626,904)
Deferred tuxution (36.,344) - (36,344)
3,051,808 9.684 3,061,492
Minority interests (1,765,646)
Convertible notes reserve (Note) (69.530)
Less: interests ucyuired in previous ucyuisition:
- inferest in of un ussociute (654,332)
- revuluution increuse on net ussets shured by
the Group in interest in un ussociute (4,215)
— avuiluble-for-sule investments (18.681)
- investment revuluution reserve reversed 1,681
Discount onh ucquisition (370,923)
Shure of results recoyhnised in retuined profits (3,143)
286,703
SATISFIED BY:
Cush considerution puid 286,703
Net cush outflow urising on ucquisitions:
Cush consideration puid (286,703)
Cush und cush eyuivulents ucquired 55,348
(231,355)
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48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note: Since u portion of Huhny Bonds is held by the Group, the correspondiny convertible notes reserves is eliminuted ufter
acyuisition, und the remuining uamount of HK$55,279,000 is presented in the consoliduted stutement of changes in equity.

During the yeur, Hunny contributed HK$41,582,000 und HK$121,535,000 to the Group’s revenue und profit for the
yeur, between the dutes of acquisition und the bulaunce sheet date.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1st April, 2006, the Group’s revenue and profit for the year attributuble to
the eqyuity holders of the Compuny from operutions would huve beenh upproximutely HK$467,255,000 und
HK$1,370,732,000, respectively. This pro formu information is for illustrutive purposes only und is hot hecessarily un
indicution of revenue und results of the Group that actudlly would huve been impucted hud the acquisitions
been completed on Tst April, 2006, nor is it intfended to be u projection of future results.

The considerution puid for ucqyuisition of interest in Hunny, including the offer price of HK$3.8 per shure, wus bused
oh the thenh murket price of Huhny's shares which wus substantially lower thun the fair value of the net ussets
ucyuired. Accordingly, u discount on ucquisition of HK$370,923,000 wus recoynised for the yeur ended 31st Murch,
2007. Subseqyuent to December 2006, the Group ucyuired udditionul equity interest of 14.20% in Hanny resulting in
u discount on ucyuisition of udditionul interest in subsidiuries of upproximutely HK$189,132,000.

In 2006, the Group ucqyuired property, plunt und eyuipment and other intanyible assets through ucyuisition of the
entire share cupitdl of Durieriun Limited ut u considerution of HK$3,500,000. The ucquisition wus uccounted for us
purchuse of ussets.

49. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Duriny the yeuar, 890,000 redeemuble convertible preference shures were converted into 907,115 ordinury shures of
the Compuny ut HK$1.04 per shure,

In 2006, HK$164,500,000 convertible notes issued by the Compuny were converted into 548,335,330 ordinury shures
of the Compuny ut HK$0.30 per shure.,

50. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operutes defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for quulifying employees. The ussets of the
schemes are sepurately held in funds under the control of frustees.

The cost churged to the consoliduted income statement represents contributions puyuble to the funds by the
Group ut rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there ure employees who leuve the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions puyuble by the Group ure reduced by the amount of forfeited
conftributions.

At the balance sheet dute, there were ho significunt forfeited contributions which urose upoh employees leauviny
the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becominy fully vested und which are uvdiluble to
reduce the contributions puyuble by the Group in future yeuars.

The Group ulso joined u Mundutory Provident Fuhd Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is reyistered
with the Munddatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mundatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinunce.
The ussets of the MPF Scheme dre held sepurately from those of the Group in funds under the control of un
independent frustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer und its employees ure euch reyuired to
muke contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligution of the Group with respect
to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contributions ure
avuiluble to reduce the conftributions payuble in future yeurs.
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51. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2007 2006
HK$’000 HKS 000

Guuruntees ygiven to bunks und financial institutions

in respect of yenerul fucilities:

- grunted to un ussociute 56,000 56,000
- grunted to d third purty 23,292 -
Financiul support given to un ussociute 8,790 9,090
88,082 65,090

52. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) The Group as a lessee:

At the bulunce sheet dute, the Group had commitments for future minimum leuse puyments under hon-

cuncelluble operuting leuses in respect of rented premises, which full due us follows:

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS 000

Within one yeur 363 807
In the second to fifth year inclusive 327 647
690 1,454

Leuses ure heyotiuted, und monthly rentuls ure fixed, for un averayge term of two yeurs,

(b) The Group as a lessor:

At the bualance sheet date, the Group had confracted with tenhants for future minimum ledase payments which

fall due us follows:

2007 2006
HK$’000 HKS 000
Within onhe year 1,050 506
In the second to fifth year inclusive 745 1,188
1,795 1,694

The properties held huve committed tenunts for the next two yeurs.

53. COMMITMENTS
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Cuapitdl expenditure confracted for but hot provided in the
consoliduted finunciul stutements in respect of ucyuisition of

property, plant and equipment - 1,398

&
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54.

55.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balunce sheet dute, the followiny assets were pledyed by the Group to secure banking and other finuncing
fucilities:

2007 2006

HK$°000 HKS’000

Listed securities of ussociates 92,955 -
Buildings 44,024 35,261
Prepuid leuse puyments 89,651 91,865
Investment property 150,421 4,016
Investments held for frading 101,543 42,758
478,594 173,900

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(W) In April 2007, Hunny issued 43,500,000 ordinury shures ut u price of HK$3.40 euch pursuunt to u placinyg und
subscription ugreement. In May 2007, the Group disposed of 21,000,000 ordinury shares of Hunny at a price of
HK$5.00 euch und the Compuny’s inferest in Hunny hus been reduced to 50.27%. Subseyuent to the disposal,
the Compuny’s interest in Hanhy has been further reduced to upproximately 49.54% due to the conversion of
the Hanny Bonds by certuin holders of the Hanny Bonds und Hanny ceused to be u subsidiary of the Compuny
on 18th May, 2007. The directors ure in the process of determininy the financial effect of the dilution and the
process hus not yet completed at the dute of this report.

(b) In Muy 2007, the Group disposed approximately 6.45% equity inferest in Trasy und the interest in Trasy hus
been reduced to 50.00004%. The Group’s interest in Trusy hus been further diluted to upproximately 49.998%
us u result of exercise of share options ygranted under the Trasy Scheme und Trusy ceused to be a subsidiury
of the Compuny on 11th June, 2007. The directors ure in the process of determininy the finunciul effect of the
dilution und the process hus not yet completed ut the date of this report.

In June 2007, Trusy issued 550,000,000 ordinury shares ut the price of HK$0.20 euch pursuunt to u plucing und
subscription ugreement. The placiny und subscription were both completed in June 2007 und the Compuny’s
shareholdinyg interest in Trasy further decreused to upproximately 38.58%.

In Juhe 2007, the Compuny hus conditionally ugreed to subscribe for up to 340,000,000 hew shares of Trusy ut
HK$0.205 per shure while Trusy hus conditionully uyreed to pluce up to 392,000,000 new shares of Trusy ut
HK$0.205 per shure to independent third purties through u plaucing ugent. The number of shares of Trusy beiny
subscribed und held by the Compuny und its concert parties will be a minimum of 38.58% but hot exceediny
40% of the issued shure cupital of Trusy us enlarged by the plucement uand subscription. In addition, the
Compuny hus conditionully ugreed to subscribe for HK$50 million convertible notes of Trusy und muy elect to
subscribe for un udditionul umount up to HK$50 million (representing the principul amount out of HK$100
million convertible notes of Trasy which have hot been successfully pluced by the placing ugent who hus
conditionully uygreed to pluce up to HK$100 million convertible notes of Trusy).

(c) InJune 2007, the Compuny issued 300,000,000 ordinury shures ut u price of HK$0.74 per shure. The number of
issued ordinury shares of the Compuny increused from 1,872,982,368 to 2,172,982,368.

(d) In April 2007, Total Wedlth Limited, un indirect wholly-owhed subsidiary of the Company held through Hanny,
entered into ugreements to subscribe for 125,000,000 shares of Wonson International Holdinygs Limited
(“Wonson") ut subscription price of HK$0.16 per shure und the convertible notes issued by Wohson with
principul umount of HK$40,000,000 ut fuir value.
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56.

57.

&

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Duriny the yeur, the Group had fransuctions/bulunces with the followinyg related purties, detuils of which ure us
follows:

Class of related party Nature of transactions/balances 2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Associutes of the Group Sules of building muteridls by the Group 424 10
Dividend income (including scrip dividend)
received by the Group 104,593 498,555
Rentdls und related building munugement fee
charyged by the Group 366 593
Service fees charged by the Group 1,028 1,464
Interest income received by the Group 18,901 7,981
Purchuse of property, plant und eyuipment - 3.175
Purchuse of club membership - 325
Rentdl and related building munagement fee
puid by the Group 2,027 -
Directors or compuny Interest puid by the Group - 1,406
controlled by director Interest puid on convertible notes issued
by the Group - 6,791

Other reluted compunies Rentul und related building munuygement fee

(Note) charged by the Group 190 65
Interest income received by the Group 8,398 7,801
Note: The Group und the ubove reluted compunies have common directors who huve sighificunt influence in the ubove

other reluted compunies.

In respect of the reluted purty transactions stated ubove, only the transactions involving directors or compuany controlled
by director of the yeur 2006 were regurded us connected trunsuctions us defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and the Compuny hus disclosed the transuctions pursuunt to the relevant disclosure requirements uccordingly.

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors were cohsidered to be key munuygement personnel of the Group. The remunerution of directors wus
disclosed in hote 8. The remunerution of directors und key executives is determined by the remuneration committee
having regurd to the performunce of individuals und murket trends.

The discretionary bonus is bused onh the director’s und employee’s skills, knowledge and involvement in the
Compuny’s uffuirs und ure determined by reference to the Compuny’s performaunce, us well us remunerution
benchmark in the industry and the prevuailing market conditions.

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY
2007 2006
HK$°000 HKS 000
Total ussets 1,978,996 1,967,634
Total liabilities (304,943) (300,117)
Totul ussets und liubilities 1,674,053 1,667,517

Cupitdl und reserves

Share cupitadl 187,298 183,750
Reserves 1,486,755 1,483,767
Totdl eyuity 1,674,053 1,667,517
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Detuils of the Compuny’s principul subsidiaries us ut 31st Murch, 2007 ure us follows:

Percentage of

Issued and issued share capital/
fully paid registered capital
Place of share capital/  held by the
incorporation/ registered Company*/ attributable
Name of subsidiary registration capital  subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
% %
All Combine Investments British Virgin Uss$1 100" 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordindry share
Burcon Group Limited Cunudu CAD1,000 100 100 Investment und
(Note (a)) class A common property holding
shares
China Enterprises Limited Bermudu US$90,173 55.23 36.72 Investment holding
("CEL") (Note (b)) common stock
Dreyer und Compuny Hohy Kony HK$6,424,000 99 99 Trading of building
Limited ordinary shares materials und
mauchinery
Greut Intelligence Holdings Honhy Kony HKS$2 100 100 Securities trading und
Limited ordinary shares freusury investment
Greut Intelligence Limited British Virgin USS1 100* 100 Investment holding
Islands ordindry share
Greut Intelligence Limited Hony Kohy HKS$2 100 100 Property holding und
ordinary shares investment
Hanny Bermudu HK$2,528,243 67.23 67.23 Investment holdiny
ordindry shures
Hanny Mugnetics Hony Kony HK$1,100,000,200 100 100 Investment holdiny
Limited ordinary share
HK$6,000,000
5% non-voting
deferred shares
(Note (c))
Island Town Limited Hony Kony HK$100 100 67.23 Investment property
holding
ITC Development British Virgin US$15,000 100* 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited Islunds ordinary shures
ITC Finunce Limited Hohy Kony HKS$2 100 100 Provision of finunce
ordindry shares
ITC Investment Holdinys British Virgin Uss$1 100* 100 Investment holding

Limited Islands ordinary share
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

&

Name of subsidiary

ITC Munugement Group

Limited

ITC Munugement Limited

Large Scule Investments
Limited

MRI Holdinys Limited
("MRI") (Note (d))

Trasy

Zhuhui Zhonyce Property

Investment Limited

gooooooood
(Note (e))

Place of
incorporation/
registration

British Virgin

Islands

Hony Kony

British Virgin

Islands

Australiu

Cuymun Islands

British Virgin

Islands

PRC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

US$2
ordinary shares

HK$2
ordinary shares

US$1
ordinary share

A$31,381,010

HK$27,790,000

ordinary shares

Uss$1

RMB1,000,000

STATEMENTS (continued)

Percentage of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the
Company*/  attributable
subsidiaries
% %
100* 100
100 100
100* 100
57.26 38.08
56.45 56.45
100 67.23
100 67.23

to the Group  Principal activities

Investment holding

Provision of
munugement und
financial services und
freusury investment

Investment holding

Investment holding

Provision und operution
of un internet-bused
precious metul
trading system

Holdiny of lund
development

project held for sule

Sund mininy

None of the subsidiuries had uny loun cupital subsisting at the end of the yeur or at uny time durinyg the yeur.

All of the ubove subsidiuries ure limited compunies.
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Notes:
(u) Burcon Group Limited operutes in Cunudu,

(b) CEL operutes in both Hony Kony und the PRC und its shares are frading on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Bourd of the
United Stutes of Americu.

(c) The holders of the 5% non-voting deferred shures ure not entitled to receive notice of or to uttend or vote ut uny gyenerul
meetings of Huhny Mugnetics Limited. The hon-voting deferred shares practicully carry no rights to dividends or to purticipute
in any distribution on winding up.

(d) MRI operutes in both Australia und Hony Konyg und its shares are listed on the Austruliu Securities Exchunye.
(e) This compuny is reyistered in the form of wholly-owhed foreigh investment enterprise.
(f)  All of the other subsidiaries mentioned in the ubove tuble operute in Hony Kony.

The ubove table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principully uffected the
result of the Group for the yeur or formed d substantial portion of the net ussets of the Group dt the end of the
yeur, To yive detuils of other subsidiuries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particular of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiuries hud issued uny debt securities at the end of the year except for Hunny which has issued
Haunny Bonds ut principal aumount of dpproximately HK$770,725,000, in which the Group hus dpproximately
HK$101,742,000 interest,
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RESULTS
Year ended 31st March,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$°000
(Restuted) (Restuted) (Restuted) (Restated)
Revenhue
— Continuiny operautions 42,132 100,590 104,361 252,959 493,298
— Discontfinued operations 726,565 3,334,076 1,921,967 - -
768,697 3,434,666 2,026,328 252,959 493,298
Profit (loss) before tuxution 138.860 (278.990) 81,249 46,436 899,575
Tuxution - - (260) - (8,695)
(Loss) profit for the yeur from
discontinued operautions (37,790) 364,119 161,672 - -
Profit for the year 101,070 85,129 232,661 46,436 890,880
Attributuble to:
Equity holders of the Compuny 103.294 (16,166) 204,377 50,289 843,929
Minority interests (2,224) 101,295 28,284 (3,853) 46,951
101,070 85,129 232,661 46,436 890,880

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$°000
(Restuted) (Restuted) (Restuted)

Totul ussets 5,291,926 5,337,404 2,292,457 2,460,700 6,310,209

Total ligbilities (2,770,135) (2,427,756) (568,308) (428,691) (1,938,149)

Shareholders’ funds 2,521,791 2,909,648 1,724,149 2,032,009 4,372,060

Afttrioutuble to:

Equity holders of the Compuny 1,658,396 1,714,284 1,694,490 2,009,945 2,810,426
Convertible hotes reserve

of u subsidiury - - - - 55,279

Minority interests 863,395 1,195,364 29,659 22,064 1,506,355

2,521,791 2,909,648 1,724,149 2,032,009 4,372,060
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